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("TEAM " or the "Company ")

Final Results

 

TEAM plc (A IM: TEAM), the wealth, asset management and complementary financial services group, is
pleased to announce its final audited results for the year to 30 September 2023.

Financial Highlights

·    Revenues increased 151% to £5.3m (FY 22: £2.1m)
·    Adjusted EBITDA loss of £0.7m (FY 22: £0.8m)
·    Group assets under management / advice up 51% at £833m (FY 22: £551m)
·    £1.9m cash in bank as at 30 September 2023

 

Acquisitions

·    June 2023, acquired Globaleye the international wealth management business headquartered in Dubai
with regulatory licences and approvals in Singapore, Malaysia, South Africa, and United Arab Emirates.

·    December 2023, acquired Neba Wealth, provider of a regulatory and operational structure for self-
employed financial advisors and Neba Singapore, a promoter of funds and products to international
IFA's around the world.

·    Completion of strategic acquisitions, and the Company now well-placed to deliver growth organically
and through individual and strategic adviser team hires

 

Operational Highlights
·    Re-organised the business into three divisions:

o  Investment Management - AUM £289m
o  Advisory - AUA £365m
o  International - AUA £180m

·    Continuing to build a stable and scalable investment management capability in Jersey, alongside
acquiring distribution channels in international growth markets. Predominantly the ex-pat communities
around the world.

·    Significant inflows of capital from Advisory clients into MPS services provided by the Investment
Management division

·    Group expanding with total number of employees, up from 33, to 87 as at 30 September 2023. Further
meaningful qualified and experienced recruitment continues.

·    Focus on expanding the number of financial advisors in the International division and targeting ex-pat
professional clients working in Asia, Africa and the Middle East

 
Current trading

·    28 Feb AUM/A up to £1.0 Billion
·    Material re-organisation of International division to create one branded division with an experienced,

regional senior management structure in place.
 

The Company also gives notice that its Annual General Meeting ('AGM') will be held at 6 Caledonia Pl, St

Helier, Jersey JE2 3NG, Jersey on Wednesday 17th  April 2024 at2.00 pm. The Notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders and the Notice of AGM and annual report and accounts for 2023 will be made available to
download later today from the Company's website https://www.teamplc.co.uk.

Commenting on the results Mark Clubb, Executive Chairman of TEAM, said:

"This has been another acDve period for TEAM. We are picking up the pace and the shape of the business is
emerging with Jersey as the central fund management engine operaDng out of a highly regulated jurisdicDon



emerging with Jersey as the central fund management engine operaDng out of a highly regulated jurisdicDon
with a strong internaDonal reputaDon for fiduciary responsibility. Alongside this in Jersey, our financial
planning advisory hub is combining well and is posiDoned to deliver dependable organic growth going
forward. The recent acquisiDons of Globaleye and Neba have been combined into the InternaDonal Division
creaDng a new plaEorm, branded as Neba Private Clients, aimed at supporDng expatriates of all naDonaliDes,
who have very specific wealth management and advice needs which we specialise in solving. The current
financial year has started well."

 For further information, please contact:

Team plc Tel : +44 1534 877210

Mark Clubb / Matthew Moore

 

Shore Capital (Nominated Advisor & Joint Broker) Tel : +44 20 7408 4090
Tom Gri ffi ths  / Ia in Sexton (Corporate Advisory)
Guy Wiehahn (Corporate Broking)

Oberon Capital (Joint Broker to TEAM)
Michael  Seabrook, Adam Pol lock, Jess ica Cave

Tel : +44 20 3179 0500

Hannam & Partners (Financial  Advisor to TEAM) Tel : +44 20 7907 8500

Gi les  Fi tzpatrick / Ernest Bel l  / Richard Clarke

Novella Communications (Financial  PR) Tel : +44 20 3151 7008

Tim Robertson / Safia  Colebrook team@novel la-comms.com 

 

About TEAM plc
 

TEAM plc i s  bui lding a  new wealth, asset management and complementary financial  services  group. W ith a  focus  on Jersey
and I nternaDonal  F inance Centres , the strategy is  to bui ld local  bus inesses  of scale around TEAM plc's  core ski l l  of
providing investment management services . Growth wi l l  be achieved via  targeted and opportunisDc acquis iDons, team and
individual  hires , col laboration with suitable partners , and by organic growth and expansion.

TEAM plc has  three principal  activi ties , Investment Management, Advisory, and International .

Investment Management provides  discreDonary investment management services , model  porEol ios , bespoke porEol ios  and
fund management services  via  fixed income and equity fund vehicles . Total  assets  managed as  at 30 September 2023 were
£289 mi l l ion (30 September 2022: £233 mi l l ion).

Advisory - primari ly for individuals  res ident in Jersey, investment consultancy services  to wealthy individuals  and trusts
and treasury advisory service for insDtuDons, profess ional  advisers , trustees  and high net worth individuals . Total  assets
advised on as  at 30 September 2023 were £365 mi l l ion (30 September 2022: £318 mi l l ion).

International i s  the Group's  financial  advisory, fund distribuDon divis ion and insurance brokering services  covering Africa,
the Middle East and As ia. Total  assets  advised on as  at 30 September 2023 were £180 mi l l ion (30 September 2022: £ni l ).

At 30 September 2023, the Group had 87 staff (30 September 2022: 33), with 52 in the UAE, 29 in Jersey, 3 in S ingapore and
1 each in the UK , South Africa and Malays ia  (30 September 2022: 32 in Jersey and 1 in the UK ). There were also 10 sel f-
employed advisers , 8 with BVI contracts  and 2 in Jersey.

Executive Chairman's Statement
 

Last year I  wrote about "path to progress" and looking forward to "further progress" which we have del ivered. This  year i t's
about "Escape velocity" and "DirecDon of travel", terms kindly introduced to me by Mr Andy Brough. "Escape velocity" i s  the
speed required for an object to escape gravitaDonal  pul l  and move into space. "DirecDon of travel" i s  the momentum of
your propuls ion to "escape".

Bus inesses  are very s imi lar to that. O nce you break through the barrier of costs , gaining brand recogniDon, establ ishing
your place in the market, and in TEAM's  case, breaking barriers  of regulatory l icences  and approvals , then the spaceship is
able to gl ide with very l i ttle energy and i t a l l  becomes about navigation.

W hi le TEAM has  broken through many barriers  s ince we l i s ted, we are not yet at the magical  "gl iding" point of being cash
positive, but we are close to that "escape velocity". Momentum is  accelerating as  we become bigger.

W hen TEAM P lc l i s ted on the AI M market, revenues were £713,000 (June 2022) and assets  under management were £291
mil l ion.  As  at end September 2023, reported revenues were £5.3 mi l l ion and assets  under management and advice of £838
mil l ion.

Soon we wi l l  have the scale to "escape". S ince Apri l  last year, towards  £100 mi l l ion has  come into the Model  PorEol io
Service ("M P S"). We have al l  the bas ics  in place: l icences, approvals , advisers , a  value proposiDon, and we are bui lding a
sol id track record.

TEAM's  Advisory divis ion focuses  on financial  planning for Jersey I s landers  - to be further strengthened by an upcoming
acquis iDon. O ur presence in Guernsey is  soon to be establ ished, headed by new senior recruit, Mark Chipperfield,
alongs ide a smal l  acquis i tion.

Jersey is  a lso the base for our cash and asset management capabi l i ties . Importantly, including our MPS range, avai lable on
international  platforms and core to our value proposition.  
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international  platforms and core to our value proposition.  

O ur I nternaDonal  bus iness  is  supported by a  network of offices, advisers  and regulatory approvals  and s imi larly offers  a
hol istic service, encompass ing pens ions, l i fe cover and mortgage advice for locals  and expatriates  of a l l  national i ties .

I nternaDonal ly, we have hubs in S ingapore, Kuala Lumpur, Abu Dhabi , Dubai , Durban, and Nairobi  in addiDon to Jersey.
TEAM I nternaDonal  i s  extremely wel l -managed by John Beverly who very successful ly founded our recent acquis iDon, Neba.
His  ambitions  include aggress ively growing adviser numbers  in these terri tories .

O ur a im is  to be in a  great many more places  and jurisdicDons, including Europe (Mi Fid I I ) and further afield in markets
such as  the Cayman Is lands  and Bermuda. We wi l l  expand into new jurisdictions.

O ur 'systemaDc acDve' investment management process  serves  our cl ients  wel l . O ur models  wi l l  be uniDsed by the second
half of the current financial  year under a  Dubl in "ManCo" provided by Waystone. The primary moDvaDon behind launching
the TEAM UC I TS fund range is  to del iver enhanced protecDon and outcomes for our cl ients . There are clear, robust rules
around the securi ties  we can and cannot invest in, a  sharp focus  on l iquidity, divers i fication ratios  to reduce portfol io risk,
and strong risk management and investment l imits . In addition, the guidance around information disclosure is  clear.

TEAM Multi  Asset Performance, as  at 29-Sep-2023          

From TEAM's  perspecDve, UC I TS funds  wi l l  s ignificantly broaden our global  opportunity set, a l lowing us  to flex our asset
al locaDon muscles  through a blend of acDve and pass ive investments . Most importantly, every cl ient invested across  our
UC I TS range wi l l  receive the same performance outcome underpinned by our best ideas  and over 200 years  plus  of
combined market expertise.

O ur drivers  for growth are very s imple. The main driver being cl ients , and their propensity to save or invest in their futures ,
principal ly, reDrement. The aspiraDon of financial  securi ty and a provis ion for the future is  not going to shrink. I  would
argue i t wi l l  grow as  sel f-rel iance becomes more prevalent. And in the emerging world, much of TEAM's  world, everyday
people in the ex-pat communities , and not just Bri tish, are getting wealthier.

O ur model  i s  highly scalable and wi l l  benefit from the "network effect." The more cl ients  and advisers , the more
opportuniDes  for interacDon, or communicaDon. There is  very l iQle marginal  increase in cost for each new cl ient and the
associated revenues. The power of compounding springs  to mind.

O ur share price performance has  been disappoinDng. As  has  the AI M or the London Stock Exchange's  market for smal ler
companies . O n a forward price-to-earnings  and price-to-book bas is , smal l -caps  trade at a  30% discount to their 15-year
median.

Meanwhi le, in the P rivate Equity sector inflows keep acceleraDng. Last year private equity backed enDDes acquired ci rca
100 UK based companies  in our sector. This  consol idation is  expected to continue through 2024.

An esDmated $4 tri l l ion is  avai lable to be deployed global ly in the sector, a lmost a  third of the enDre private capital
industry ($13 tri l l ion) with over 40 houses  conDnuing to tap into the highly fragmented wealth sector for more
acquis i tions.

W ithin the industry M P S is  growing at double digi t rates . W ithin the confines of the UK , industry experts  expect on-plaEorm
M P S AUM to reach £200 bi l l ion by 2026, assuming that growth remains  at pre-2022 levels  of 25% p.a. TEAM has  a  wel l
evolved MPS solution which wi l l  be augmented by our Dubl in Manco proposition.

O ur board is  very clear on how and what we can achieve in the long term. We are uniquely pos iDoned to succeed. O ur story
is  informed and evidence driven. We are confident that our compeDDve pos iDon wi l l  get even stronger as  we execute on our
strategy.

Despite the current share price being disappoinDng, the state of the markets , etc, we want to stay l i s ted. This  i s  because in
our internaDonal  markets , being l i s ted on the London Stock Exchange is  valuable. I t's  about reputaDon and the comfort that
a high level  of governance provides. This  helps  us  with recruiDng talented investment managers  and on-going cl ient
engagement.

But we are not just a  financial  "model ." We are a  culture. We have great people, and we are conDnuously chal lenging our
people.

O ur strategic aspiraDons are s imple. More advisers  serving more cl ients . We are confident that we have a bus iness  that
wi l l  conDnue to grow and that we wi l l  achieve escape velocity. I f we achieve that we wi l l  create a  bus iness  that i s  valuable
to shareholders  whi lst providing our cl ients  with excel lent service.

I  truly thank al l  my col leagues. My job is  to ensure that they have the resources  and training to a l low them to demonstrate
how great they are to our cl ients  and to their peers .

To our cl ients , thank you. Thank you for your support.

To our shareholders , thank you. Your support wi l l  be ful ly rewarded through us  del ivering fabulous  shareholder value



To our shareholders , thank you. Your support wi l l  be ful ly rewarded through us  del ivering fabulous  shareholder value
growth.  "Escape velocity" i s  within touching distance.

I  am a substanDal  shareholder and I  have never been more excited and pass ionate about our bus iness . I  wi l l  conDnue to
buy more TEAM shares.

 
 
 
Mr J M Clubb

Executive Chair

27 March 2024

  

 

Performance and Strategic Report
 

Introduction
The Directors  present their Strategic Report on the Group for the year ended 30 September 2023.

Overview
The Directors ' a im is  to provide long term capital  appreciaDon for Shareholders  by bui lding a  profitable and sustainable
business . Growth wi l l  be sought through winning new cl ients  and targeted acquis iDons, underpinned by investment in the
support infrastructure.

The overal l  s trategy is  to promote the conDnued development of the Group into a  leading internaDonal  wealth and asset
management bus iness . It i s  expected that the Group's  growth wi l l  be achieved through:

·   an acquis iDon driven strategy to bring into the Group complementary offshore and onshore wealth management
and financial  planning bus inesses;

·  a focus  on del ivering revenue and cost synergies , leveraging our increas ing scale and breadth of services  to gain a
greater share of cl ient wal let and economies  of scale for cl ients  and the Group;

·   idenDfying and del ivering complementary services  such as  specia l is t funds, cash management, and corporate
services;

·   the expansion into complementary locaDons - onshore UK , Crown Dependencies , other I nternaDonal  F inance
Centres , and

·    cl ient growth through team and selective hires  and targeted bus iness  development.

The Directors  bel ieve that the successful  execuDon of a  buy and bui ld strategy to acquire incremental  scale is  l ikely to have
the most meaningful  impact on the future value of the Group. The Directors  a lso bel ieve that expansion in the faster
growing internaDonal  markets , rather than the s lower growing UK  and Crown Dependencies  markets , wi l l  a lso benefit the
development of the Group.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
As TEAM is  in the iniDal  stages  of del ivering the strategic plan for the bus iness , the Board has  yet to set longer term
measures  for the assessment of the performance of the bus iness .

The key targets  for the Directors  are to:

·    manage the bus iness  with a  high standard of corporate governance;
·    improve the operating performance of the Group to a  cashflow pos itive pos ition;
·    bui ld the bus iness  to scale within Jersey, which we define as  AUM of over £500 mi l l ion and an operating surplus;
·    integrate and del iver the cost and revenue synergies  identi fied in the acquired bus inesses , and
·    bui ld and convert our pipel ine of acquis iDon opportuniDes. A necessary part of further acquis iDons wi l l  be rais ing

additional  financing, which is  expected to be required for any further acquis i tions  to be made by the Group.

These measures, a long with revenue, cost, and profitabi l i ty measures, wi l l  be developed into longer term K P I s  for the
business , to which future Board remuneration wi l l  be a l igned.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Risk appeDte is established, reviewed, and monitored by the Board. The Group, through the operaDon of its
CommiQee structure, considers all relevant risks and advises the Board as necessary. The Group and each
operaDng enDty maintains a comprehensive risk register as part of its risk management framework
encouraging a risk-based approach to the internal controls and management of the Group.
 
The Group seeks to ensure that its risk management framework and control environment is conDnuously
evolving which the Board monitors on an ongoing basis.
 
Liquidity and capital risk: the Group's focus is on bringing the business to a posiDve cash flow posiDon, whilst
implemenDng its growth strategy. Before this goal is reached, the availability of sufficient liquid resources to
meet the operaDng requirements of the business, and any deferred payments due to vendors of businesses
to the Group, are closely monitored and a key element of any investment decisions taken.
 
Opera+onal risk: operaDonal risk is the risk of loss to the Group resulDng from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people, and systems, or from external events. Each trading enDty conducts a business risk
assessment to idenDfy all risks faced, and to put in place effecDve miDgaDng controls and procedures. These
are reviewed regularly.
 
Business con+nuity risk: the risk that serious  damage or disrupDon may be caused as  a  result of a  breakdown or
interrupDon, from either internal  or external  sources, to the bus iness  of the Group. This  risk i s  miDgated in part by the
Group having bus iness  continuity and disaster recovery arrangements .
 
Credit risk: the Board takes acDve steps to minimise credit losses, including the close supervision of credit
limits and exposures, and the proacDve management of any overdue accounts. AddiDonally, risk assessments
are performed on an ongoing basis on all deposit taking banks and custodians and our outsourced
relationships.
 
Non-compliance with laws and regula+ons risk: the Group has  Compl iance and O peraDons funcDons resourced with
appropriately qual ified and experienced individuals . The Directors  monitor changes  and developments  in the regulatory
environment and ensure that sufficient resources  are avai lable for the Group to implement any required changes.



S.172 Statement
As a Jersey company, TEAM plc does  not fa l l  under the UK  Companies  Act 2006 (the "C A 2006"), but we do fol low the
requirements  under secDon 172 C A 2006 by which the Directors  have a duty to promote the success  of the Company for the
benefit of shareholders  as  a  whole. I n doing so, the Directors  have regard to the l ikely consequences  of any decis ion in the
long-term; the des irabi l i ty of the Company for maintaining a  reputaDon for high standards  of bus iness  conduct; and the
need to act fa i rly as  between members  of the Company.
 
The Board cons iders  that i ts  primary stakeholders  are shareholders , employees, cl ients , suppl iers  and regulators . We set
out below how we engage with our stakeholders :-
 
Shareholders - contact with our shareholders  is  through a number of avenues which include the Annual  Report, Annual
General  MeeDng, one-to-one meeDngs and telephone conversaDons. MaQers  under discuss ion include strategy and i ts
execution and generating strong returns.
 
Employees - the Board engages  with employees  through a variety of methods, including regular face-to--face meeDngs  with
the management teams of the operaDng enDDes. The execuDve Directors  are more acDvely engaged with staff, and are
known personal ly to the management team.
 
Clients - the Group through i ts  subs idiaries  a ims to provide investment and advisory services  that meet the needs of i ts
cl ients . The Group's  subs idiary management teams update the Board on a regular bas is  on maQers  of cl ient service and
performance, and new cl ient requirements .
 
Suppliers - the Company places  rel iance on external  third party providers  for certain acDviDes  and services . The selecDon
process  and engagement with these parDes  is  undertaken by senior management to ensure the smooth operaDon and
del ivery of services  to the Company.
 
Regulators - three of the Company's  subs idiaries  are regulated by the JFS C, and there are regulated enDDes operaDng in
Singapore, the UAE, South Africa, and the Federal  Terri tory of Labuan (in Malays ia). Regular ongoing communicaDon with
the regulators  i s  maintained by the boards  of the respecDve operaDng companies  and regular management informaDon is
suppl ied as  required. Al l  Board members  and key individuals  of the regulated enDDes are approved in their roles  by the
respective regulators , as  are the s igni ficant shareholders  in TEAM plc.
 

The Performance and Strategic Report on pages  9 - 11 has  been approved by the Board and s igned on i ts  behal f.

 

 

 

Mr M C Moore

Chief Financial and Operating Officer

27 March 2024

 

 

Financial Overview
 

A summary of the Group's  performance for the financial  year is  set out below:

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Revenues 5,323 2,120
Cost of sales (924) (414)
Operating expenses (6,474) (3,271)
Operating loss (2,075) (1,565)
 

 
 

Operating loss before exceptional items (1,853) (1,436)
Exceptional items (222) (129)
Operating loss after exceptional items (2,075) (1,565)
 

 
 

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial  instruments 1,680 -
Share award expense (13) -
Other income and charges (35) (23)
Loss before tax (443) (1,588)
Tax (2) 64
Loss after tax (445) (1,524)
 

Adjusted EBITDA, excluding exceptional  i tems, i s  set out below:

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Loss after tax (445) (1,524)
   

Interest 35 23



Tax 2 (64)
Depreciation 171 81
Amortisation of intangible assets 995 543
EBITDA 758 (941)
   

Acquis i tion related expenses* 222 129
Share award expense 13 -
Fair value adjustments (1,680) -
Adjusted EBITDA (687) (812)
 

Note s :

* The s e  a re  thi rd pa rty cha rge s  re l a ti ng to the  a cqui s i ti ons  of s ubs i di a ry bus i ne s s e s  a nd i nve s ti ga ti on e xpe ns e s  re l a ti ng to
pote nti a l  tra ns a cti ons  tha t di d not l e a d to a  tra ns a cti on.

 

 

Financial analysis

The results  for the year to 30 September 2023 when compared to the prior year were as  fol lows:
 
Revenues
Total  revenues rose 151% to £5.3 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £2.1 mi l l ion) with a  s ignificant increase from the first ful l  year of
contribution from the Advisory bus inesses  acquired in 2022 and four months ' contribution from Globaleye.

I nvestment Management saw a steady year of operaDonal  improvement and excluding a  reversal  of revenues incorrectly
booked in previous  periods  (£0.1 mi l l ion, F Y 22: ni l ), revenues increased 2%. I ncluding the revenue reversal  the headl ine
revenues decreased 7% to £0.95 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £1.02 mi l l ion). The model  porEol io service for cl ients  was  extended to five
investment platforms, and has  been successful ly adopted by the cl ients  of the Advisory divis ion.

New business  income in the Advisory divis ion was lower than that recorded in previous  years  as  cl ient acDvity in Jersey
was subdued. This  was  seen across  the market and fol lows from the loss  in confidence of potentia l  cl ients  in making longer
term financial  planning arrangements  against the background of unhelpful  macro-economic developments , in parDcular
high interest rates  and high cost inflaDon. There are s igns  that acDvity i s  s tarDng to return to more normal  levels  as  equity
markets  have performed wel l , inflation is  fa l l ing and the expectation is  for downwards  moves  in interest rates .

O ur Treasury Services  bus iness , which is  included in the Advisory divis ion, recorded revenues in 2023 of £1.0 mi l l ion (F Y
22: £0.8 mi l l ion). During the year a  seQlement was  reached with a  cl ient for non-payment of fees  fol lowing the cancel laDon
of a  long-term contract. This  led to a  one-off seQlement of £0.65 mi l l ion, less  third party expenses, whi le the ongoing
revenues generated have fa l len. This  has  had a knock on impact on the carrying value of the bus iness  within the group.  The
Treasury Service bus iness  has  faced a more pos itive market, with the increase in the returns  on cash making the asset class
of more interest to investors , though this  i s  not yet turning into materia l  new cl ient wins . P rogress  is  being seen with new
services  being provided to current cl ients , and whi le a  return to the historic levels  of revenue is  some way away, the
Treasury Service bus iness  has  remained profi table.

Overal l  Advisory reported revenues of £3.0 mi l l ion (FY 22: £1.1 mi l l ion), a  178% increase.

We are now reporDng a third divis ion, I nternaDonal , which includes  the Globaleye bus iness  acquired on 31 May 2023, and
wi l l  include the Neba bus inesses  from their acquis iDon in December 2023. I nternaDonal  has  made revenues for the four
months  of £1.3 mi l l ion (F Y 22: ni l ). O ur original  assessment of the expected financial  performance of the Globaleye Group
was in hinds ight too opDmisDc, and a s ignificant restructuring has  taken place to put the bus iness  back on a path to
making a  profi t in i ts  own right, and to making a  s igni ficant contribution to the Investment Management divis ion.

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000
Investment Management 951 1,025
Advisory 3,040 1,094
International 1,332 -
Other - 1

Total 5,323 2,120

 
Client assets
Total  cl ient assets  increased year-on-year by 51% from £551 mi l l ion to £834 mi l l ion as  at 30 September 2023. This  was
through the s igni ficant flow into MPS services  provided by the Investment Management divis ion from Advisory cl ients ,
materia l  new cl ient wins  in the investment consultancy services  within the Advisory divis ion, and the inclus ion of the
acquired Globaleye financial  planning bus inesses.

Investment
Management Advisory  International * Total

£'m £'m £'m £'m
As at 30 Sept 2022 233** 318 - 551
Net Inflows 44 47 - 91
Other including market performance 12 (1) - 11
From acquired bus inesses - - 180 180

Total AUM/A at 30 Sept 2023 289 364 180 833
 

* We have taken the client AUA figure for International from 1 January 2024, which was the first date on which a reliable estimate could
be made of the underlying client assets.

** The opening balance has been restated to remove funds managed by TEAM that were solely held by existing clients and earned no
additional fees.

Investment Management
The total  I nvestment Management AUM as  at 30 September 2023 was £289 mi l l ion (30 September 2022: £233 mi l l ion), a
24% increase on last year.

The most s ignificant change in the year was  the flow of cl ient assets  into the M P S. By 30 September 2023 the assets
managed with the models  were up to £70 mi l l ion, from £12 mi l l ion at the start of the year. This  was  predominantly driven



managed with the models  were up to £70 mi l l ion, from £12 mi l l ion at the start of the year. This  was  predominantly driven
by the transfer of cl ients  in the Advisory bus iness  switching from an investment advisory service del ivered by the Advisory
divis ion to the M P S del ivered by the I nvestment Management divis ion. By 30 September 2023 £64 mi l l ion of Advisory
cl ients  were investing with the Investment Management divis ion.

I nvestment performance was above market peers , and the flagship mulD-asset range of soluDons del ivered steady risk-
adjusted returns  over the prior twelve months  amidst di fficult market conditions.

The K EOX  ES G Bonds Fund gained 1.3% in share price during the financial  year 2023, whi le the total  assets  fel l  0.5% to
close at £80 mi l l ion (£80 mi l l ion). Bond markets  were pushed and pul led throughout the period as  central  banks  warned
interest rates  wi l l  be "higher for longer" to tame inflaDon but forward-looking economic data s ignal led s lowing growth wi l l
soon enable pol icymakers  to ease up and change course.

The bus iness  is  in the process  of launching a  uniDsed vers ion of i ts  model  porEol ios , which wi l l  make the service
access ible to investors  and savers  in products  that do not a l low investments  to be held via  the five investment plaEorms
on which TEAM now runs  the models . These are expected to be launched in H2 2024 and be of most interest to the cl ients  of
the International  divis ion.

Advisory
Two financial  advice bus inesses  were acquired in July and August 2022, and recorded their first ful l  year of contribuDon to
30 September 2023. During the year the bus iness  has  been address ing known historic i ssues  with O mega's  corporate
governance controls , pol icies  and procedures  and has  made good progress  in address ing the historic deficiencies . The
business  conDnues to be under review by the Jersey regulator, and further work is  required to close down this  chapter. The
integraDon of the two advice bus inesses  is  now complete, with both operaDng from the same premises , with the same
pol icies  and procedures, under the Concentric Wealth brand. I t i s  the intent of the Group to s impl i fy i ts  corporate structure
to reduce the ongoing operaDonal  chal lenges  of running separate legal  and regulated enDDes, which wi l l  enable further
cost cutting.

International
The market for internaDonal  financial  advisory services  in the Middle East, S E As ia  and Africa remain strong, with a
s igni ficantly higher growth rate expected when compared to the UK and Europe.

TEAM I nternaDonal  i s  targeDng profess ional  cl ients  seeking high-end advisory and private banking services , without the
over-encumbering minimum asset required by the private banks. Many of these potenDal  cl ients  have porEol ios  of between
£1-5 mi l l ion yet are unable to be onboarded by the private banks  as  they do not meet their minimum cri teria. This  presents
an opportunity for TEAM International .

I n December 2024, aVer the financial  year end, TEAM acquired Neba Financial  SoluDons Limited in Labuan and  Neba
Financial  SoluDons P rivate Limited in S ingapore. The branding used - Neba P rivate C l ients  - i s  being adopted across  the
Globaleye enDDes. I t i s  expected that the TEAM model  porEol ios , especial ly the uniDzed vers ion, wi l l  lead to s ignificant
opportuniDes  for the distribuDon of the TEAM funds and make a materia l  contribuDon to the profitabi l i ty of the I nvestment
Management divis ion.

Expenses
Total  expenses  rose by 101% to £7.4 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £3.6 mi l l ion) with the inclus ion of the two Advisory bus inesses  for a
ful l  year (two months  in 2022) and Globaleye for four months  (ni l  for 2022).

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Cost of sales 924 414
Staff costs 3,359 1,678
Non-staff costs 3,337 1,722
Adjusted total costs 7,620 3,814
Acquis i tion related expenses (222) (129)

Total 7,398 3,685

 

As  at 30 September 2023, the total  s taff in TEAM was 87, up from 33 at 30 September 2022, and staff costs  were up 99% to
£3.3 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £1.7 mi l l ion). Cost of sales  was  123% higher at £0.9 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £0.4 mi l l ion), a  result of the
commiss ions  paid to the sel f-employed advisors  in Globaleye, which is  a  feature of the operaDng model  for that bus iness .
Non-staff costs  were up 96% at £3.3 mi l l ion (30 September 2022 £1.7 mi l l ion), reflecDng the ful l  year contribuDons from
Advisory, high inflation in services  seen in Jersey, and the costs  from Globaleye for the four months  included.

Adjustments to EBITDA

Acquis iDon related expenses  were £222k (F Y 22:: £129k) and included the legal , regulatory and financial  advice fees
relating to the acquis i tion of Globaleye, and from the cancel led acquis i tion of Thornton Associates  Limited.

Share award expenses  were £13k (30 September 2022: £ni l ) and reflect the cost of equity to be issued to the execuDve
directors  which vested during the period.

Fair value adjustments  were a gain of £1,680k (30 September 2022: £ni l ), being the reducDon in the cons ideraDon payable
to vending shareholders  of certain acquired subs idiaries  (see note 15).

Profits
The adjusted EBITDA was a loss of £0.4 million (FY 22: loss £0.8 million), an improvement of 50%. The most
significant elements were 1) the inclusion of the losses in Globaleye (£0.1 million), 2) the client seQlement at
JCAP (revenue of £0.7 million) and 3) the contribuDons from the full year of ownership of the financial advice
businesses in Jersey.
Tax
Regulated financial  services  bus inesses  in Jersey pay a  flat corporaDon tax rate of 10%. The Treasury Services  bus iness  is
not regulated and has  a  ni l  tax rate. The Globaleye enDDes are subject to tax rates  of 17% (Singapore), 3% (Labuan),
between 7 and 27%% (South Africa), and 0% (UAE and BVI ). The reducDon in the tax recovery in the year reflects  the group
rel ief now avai lable for current period losses  from the I nvestment Management divis ion to the Advisory divis ion. The
deferred tax asset of £152k (F Y 22: £156k) i s  expected to be uDl ised against the future profits  generated in the I nvestment
Management Divis ion.

Earnings per share
The headl ine loss  per share decreased to 2.0p from 7.9p, a  75% reducDon. The adjusted loss  per share decreased 26% to
3.1p from 4.2p.

Cash Flows
Cash increased to £1.9 mi l l ion (30 September 2022: £1.7 mi l l ion) as  operaDng losses  of £0.4 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £1.3 mi l l ion)
were incurred, cash balances  of £0.9 mi l l ion were acquired in Globaleye (F Y 22: £0.6 mi l l ion), and the loan note of £0.4
mi l l ion was issued. There were minimal  deferred cash payments  made in the period relaDng to acquis iDons of £20k (F Y 22:
£1.5 mi l l ion), whi le the cash spent on acquis i tions  in the period was ni l  (FY22: £3.5 mi l l ion).



£1.5 mi l l ion), whi le the cash spent on acquis i tions  in the period was ni l  (FY22: £3.5 mi l l ion).

Statement of Financial Position
Net assets  decreased by 6% to £8.2 mi l l ion (F Y 22: £8.7 mi l l ion), fol lowing the acquis iDon of the Globaleye companies  and
no issue of new shares  (FY 22: £2.7 mi l l ion) less  the £0.4 mi l l ion of losses  (FY 22: £1.5 mi l l ion).

Going concern
The group incurred a consol idated net loss  of £445,000 during the year ended 30 September 2023 and, as  of that date, i ts
consol idated current l iabi l iDes  exceeded i ts  consol idated current assets  by £3,319,000.  This  indicates  that the company
may not be a going concern.

The Directors  have prepared financial  projecDons along with sens iDvity analyses  of reasonably plaus ible a l ternaDve
outcomes, covering cl ients  and assets , cost inflaDon, the take up of Group services  and the potenDal  acquis iDon of further
bus inesses. The forecasts  demonstrate that the Directors  bel ieve that the Group wi l l  require addiDonal  financial  resources
to meet the cash requirements  of the Group before i t i s  expected to reach a cash flow posiDve state. The Board therefore is
acDvely managing the cost base of the Group, curtai l ing expenditure on further acquis iDons, i t i s  cons idering opDons to
improve the current revenue yields  earned, and preparing a l ternaDves  to raise further funding as  and when required,
including within the next 12 months. This  could include further use of loan notes , and the potenDal  for a  targeted equity
raise from the current shareholder base.

Taken together, whi le the plans  to miDgate the cash required, and the plans  to raise further funding, are both not certain,
they do give the Board sufficient confidence to cons ider the going concern bas is  to be appropriate for the accounts . 

Dividends
The Board does not propose to pay a dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2023 (FY
22: £nil).
 
 

 

Mr M C Moore

CFO and COO

27 March 2024

 

Corporate Governance 
 

The Board recognises the importance of sound corporate governance and has adopted the Corporate
Governance Guidelines for Smaller Quoted Companies published in 2018 by the Quoted Companies Alliance
(the "QCA Code"). The Directors anDcipate that whilst the Company will conDnue to comply with the QCA
Code, given the Group's size and plans, it will also endeavour to have regard to the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code as best pracDce guidance to the extent appropriate for a company of its size and
nature.

 

Below are the 10 key governance principles as defined in the QCA Code and details of how TEAM plc
addresses each of these principles. 

 

1.   Establish a strategy and business model which promotes long-term value for shareholders 

How it should be applied:

The Board must be able to express a shared view of the Company's purpose, business model and strategy. It
should go beyond the simple descripDon of products and corporate structures and set out how the Company
intends to deliver shareholder value in the medium to long-term. It should demonstrate that the delivery of
long-term growth is underpinned by a clear set of values aimed at protecDng the Company from unnecessary
risk and securing its long-term future. 

How the Company applies it:

The Board is responsible for the Group's strategy. The operaDon of the Board is documented in a formal
schedule of maQers reserved for its approval which is reviewed annually. This includes the Group's strategic
aims and objectives. Further, the Group's strategy is explained fully within our Strategic Report.  

 

2.   Seek to understand and meet shareholder needs and expectations 

 How it should be applied:

Directors must develop a good understanding of the needs and expectations of all elements of the Company's
shareholder base. 

The Board must manage shareholders' expectaDons and should seek to understand the moDvaDons behind



The Board must manage shareholders' expectaDons and should seek to understand the moDvaDons behind
shareholder voting decisions. 

How the Company applies it:

The Board is committed to regular shareholder dialogue with both its institutional and retail shareholders. 

The principal opportunity for the Board to meet shareholders is at the Company's AGM, which shareholders
are encouraged to attend. 

The Company also has a dedicated email address which investors can use to contact the Company. The CEO is
responsible for reviewing all communicaDons received from shareholders and determining the most
appropriate response. 

 

3.    Take into account wider stakeholder and social responsibilities and their implications for long-term success 

 How it should be applied:

Long-term success relies upon good relaDons with a range of different stakeholder groups both internal
(workforce) and external (suppliers, customers, regulators, and others). The Board needs to idenDfy the
Company's stakeholders and understand their needs, interests, and expectations. 

Where maQers that relate to the Company's impact on society, the communiDes within which it operates or
the environment have the potenDal to affect the Company's ability to deliver shareholder value over the
medium to long-term, then those maQers must be integrated into the Company's strategy and business
model. 

Feedback is an essenDal part of all control mechanisms. Systems need to be in place to solicit, consider and
act on feedback from all stakeholder groups. 

How the Company applies it:

The Directors believe that, in addiDon to its shareholders, the main stakeholders of the Company are its
clients, its employees, the communiDes in which it operates and its two regulatory bodies (the London Stock
Exchange, and the Jersey Financial Services Commission). 

The Company acts with integrity, focuses on creaDng results and importantly values people - from its
members of staff to those who form the communities it engages with.  

The Company dedicates significant Dme to understanding and acDng on the needs and requirements of each
of these Groups by way of meetings dedicated to obtaining feedback.  

The Directors are available to discuss any matter stakeholders might wish to raise. 

 

4 .   Embed effec$ve risk management, considering both opportuni$es and threats, throughout the
organisation 

 How it should be applied 

The Board needs to ensure that the Company's risk management framework idenDfies and addresses all
relevant risks to execute and deliver strategy; companies need to consider their extended business, including
the Company's supply chain, from key suppliers to end-customer. 

SeXng strategy includes determining the extent of exposure to the idenDfied risks that the Company can
bear and willing to take (risk tolerance and risk appetite). 

How the Company applies it  

The Board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of significant risks that may have an impact on
the Group's operaDons, and for maintaining a risk management framework. The Board is responsible for the
management of risk and regularly carries out a robust assessment of the principal risks and uncertainDes
affecDng the Group's business, discussing how these could affect operaDons, performance, and solvency and
what mitigating actions, if any, can be taken. There is an annual review of the business risk assessments.

 

5.   Maintain the Board as a well-functioning, balanced team led by the Chairman 



5.   Maintain the Board as a well-functioning, balanced team led by the Chairman 

 How it should be applied 

The Board members have a collecDve responsibility and legal obligaDon to promote the interests of
the Company and are collecDvely responsible for defining corporate governance arrangements. UlDmate
responsibility for the quality of, and approach to, corporate governance lies with the Chairman of the Board. 

The Board (and any CommiQees) should be provided with high quality informaDon in a Dmely manner to
facilitate proper assessment of the matters requiring a decision or insight. 

The Board should have an appropriate balance between execuDve and non-execuDve Directors and should
have at least two independent non- executive Directors. Independence is a Board judgement. 

The Board should be supported by CommiQees (e.g. audit, remuneraDon, nominaDon) that have the
necessary skills and knowledge to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively. 

How the Company applies it  

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group including the formulaDon and approval of
the Group's long-term objecDves and strategy, the approval of budgets, the oversight of Group operaDons,
the maintenance of sound internal control and risk management systems and the implementaDon of Group
strategy, policies, and plans. While the Board delegates specific responsibiliDes, there is a formal schedule of
maQers specifically reserved for decision by the Board. Such reserved maQers include, amongst other things,
approval of significant capital expenditure, material business contracts and major corporate transacDons. The
Board meets regularly to review performance.

The QCA Code recommends at least two members of the Board comprise Non-execuDve Directors
determined by the Board to be independent. The Board is comprised of five Directors, of whom two are
execuDve and three are non-execuDve. The Board considers all three of the non-execuDves to be
independent and, as such, the Company complies with the requirements of the QCA Code in this regard.

The Board recognises that the QCA states that save in excepDonal circumstances, a Chairman should not also
fulfil the role of chief execuDve. The Company does not have a Chief ExecuDve but relies on Mr J M Clubb as
ExecuDve Chair and Mr M C Moore as Chief Financial Officer and Chief OperaDng Officer to fulfil the duDes of
a Chief ExecuDve. The Board believes this is appropriate due to the Company having limited financial and
operational scale at present. The role and responsibilities of Mr J M Clubb and Mr M C Moore are supported by
shareholders. The Board however intends to appoint a Chief ExecuDve or Chairman  in the future, at the
appropriate moment, and the role of Mr J M Clubb as an execuDve Director will be reviewed. The Company is
committed to always having a majority of independent Directors.

With effect from Admission, the Board has established an audit and risk CommiQee (the "Audit and Risk
CommiQee"), a nominaDon CommiQee (the "NominaDon CommiQee") and a remuneraDon CommiQee (the
"Remuneration Committee") with formally delegated responsibilities.

 

6.    Ensure that between them the Directors have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills, and capabilities 

 How it should be applied 

The Board must have an appropriate balance of sector, financial and public markets skills and experience, as
well as an appropriate balance of personal qualiDes and capabiliDes. The Board should understand and
challenge its own diversity, including gender balance, as part of its composition. 

The Board should not be dominated by one person or a Group of people. Strong personal bonds can be
important but can also divide a Board. 

As companies evolve, the mix of skills and experience required on the Board will change, and Board
composition will need to evolve to reflect this change. 

How the Company applies it 

The experience and knowledge of each of the Directors gives them the ability to construcDvely challenge
strategy and to scrutinise performance.  

Mr J M Clubb brings leadership, sector expertise and experience of substantially growing small businesses. Mr
M C Moore brings sector experDse, financial and operaDonal leadership, and experience of acquisiDon led
growth strategies. Mr L P C Taylor, Mr M M Gray and Mr D J K Turnbull bring addiDonal



growth strategies. Mr L P C Taylor, Mr M M Gray and Mr D J K Turnbull bring addiDonal
strategic, regulatory, commercial, transacDon and leadership experience which will be invaluable as the
Board pursues the Company's growth strategy and continues to develop the Group.  

Directors are expected to aQend all meeDngs of the Board, which will all be held in Jersey, and the
CommiQees on which they sit, and to devote sufficient Dme to the Group's affairs to enable them to fulfil
their duDes as Directors. If Directors are unable to aQend a meeDng, their comments on papers to be
considered at the meeDng will be discussed in advance with the Chair so that their contribuDon can be
included in the wider Board/Committee discussion.  

The Company Secretary ensures that all Directors are kept abreast of changes in relevant legislaDon and
regulaDons, with the assistance of the Company's advisers where appropriate. The ExecuDve Directors are
subject to the Company's performance development review process through which their performance against
predetermined objecDves is reviewed and their personal and professional development needs considered.
The Directors are encouraged to raise any personal development or training needs with the Chair.

 

7.    Evaluate Board performance based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous improvement 

 How it should be applied 

The Board should regularly review the effecDveness of its performance as a unit, as well as that of its
Committees and the individual Directors. 

The Board performance review may be carried out internally or, ideally, externally facilitated from Dme to
time. 

The review should idenDfy development or mentoring needs of individual Directors or the wider senior
management team. 

It is healthy for membership of the Board to be periodically refreshed. Succession planning is a vital task for
Boards. No member of the Board should become indispensable. 

How the Company applies it 

A process of formal annual Board evaluaDon took place during the period. In addiDon, the Non-execuDve
Directors met, without the Chair present, to evaluate his performance.  

The NominaDon CommiQee is required to give recommendaDons to the Directors where there are vacancies
or where it is felt that addiDonal Directors should be appointed. For new appointments the search for
candidates is conducted, and appointments are made, on merit, against objecDve criteria and with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. 

 

8.   Promote a corporate culture that is based on ethical values and behaviours 

 How it should be applied 

The Board should embody and promote a corporate culture that is based on sound ethical values and
behaviours and use it as an asset and a source of competitive advantage. 

The policy set by the Board should be visible in the acDons and decisions of the Chief ExecuDve and the rest
of the management team. Corporate values should guide the objectives and strategy of the Company. 

The culture should be visible in every aspect of the business, including recruitment, nominaDons, training,
and engagement. The performance and reward system should endorse the desired ethical behaviours across
all levels of the company. 

The corporate culture should be recognisable throughout the disclosures in the Annual Report, website and
any other statements issued by the Company. 

How the Company applies it 

The Board monitors and promotes a healthy corporate culture and has considered how that culture is
consistent with the Company's objecDves, strategy, and business model and with the descripDon of principal
risks and uncertainties. 

The Board has considered and assessed the culture as being inclusive, transparent, and collaboraDve with



The Board has considered and assessed the culture as being inclusive, transparent, and collaboraDve with
appropriate behaviours. The Group has a Code of Conduct, an AnD-bribery and CorrupDon Policy, and policies
and procedures relating to whistleblowing stating the Company's commitment to conducting its business with
honesty and integrity, its expectaDon that staff will maintain high standards, and encouraging prompt
disclosure of any suspected wrongdoing. All such policies are available to view in the staff handbook.  

The terms of reference of the Audit CommiQee include reviewing the adequacy and security of the
Company's arrangements for its employees and contractors to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters and keeping under review the Company's procedures.

 
9.    Maintain governance structures and processes that are fit for purpose and support good decision-making

by the Board 

How it should be applied 

The Company should maintain governance structures and processes in line with its corporate culture and
appropriate to its: 

·               size and complexity; and 

·               capacity, appetite, and tolerance for risk. 

The governance structures should evolve over Dme in parallel with its objecDves, strategy, and business
model to reflect the development of the Company. 

 

How the Company applies it 

The Board has an established Audit, RemuneraDon, Risk and NominaDon CommiQees which meet regularly in
accordance with their terms of reference. The details of these CommiQees, including their terms of reference
and composiDon, are set out in our website. This detail also includes the roles and responsibiliDes of each of
the Directors. 

 

The maQers reserved for the Board, are set out in the Board Terms of Reference, and can be summarised as
follows: 

·               Reviewing, approving, and guiding corporate strategy, major plans of action, risk appetite and
policies, annual budgets, and business plans; setting performance objectives; monitoring.

·               Implementation and corporate performance; and overseeing major capital expenditures,
acquisitions, and disposals. 

·               Monitoring the effectiveness of the Company's governance arrangements and practices, making
changes as needed to ensure the alignment of the Company's governance framework with current
best practices. 

·               Ensuring that appointments to the Board or its Committees are effected in accordance with the
appropriate governance process. 

·               Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of management, Board members,
shareholders, external advisors, and other service providers, including misuse of corporate assets and
abuse in related party transactions; and overseeing the process of external disclosure and
communications. 

·               The Board is also responsible for all other matters of such importance as to be of significance to
the Group as a whole because of their strategic, financial, or reputational implications or consequences. 

 

At this stage the Board believes that the governance framework is appropriate for a Company of its size, but it
continues to keep this under review. 

 

10. Communicate how the Company is governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue with



10. Communicate how the Company is governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue with

shareholders and other relevant stakeholders 

 How it should be applied 

A healthy dialogue should exist between the Board and all its stakeholders, including shareholders, to enable
all interested parties to come to informed decisions about the Company. 

Appropriate communicaDon and reporDng structures should exist between the Board and all consDtuent
parts of its shareholder base. This will assist: 

 

·               the communication of shareholders' views to the Board; and 

·               the shareholders' understanding of the unique circumstances and constraints faced by the 

               Company. 

 

It should be clear where these communication practices are described (Annual Report or website). 

 

How the Company applies it 

The Company is commiQed to open dialogue with all its stakeholders. The ExecuDve Chair liaises with the
Company's principal shareholders, regulators and, where appropriate, clients and relays their views to the
wider Board. 

On the Company's website, www.teamplc.co.uk, shareholders can find all historical regulatory
announcements, Interim Reports and Annual Reports. Annual General MeeDng Circulars are posted directly
to all registered shareholders or nominees and results of Annual General MeeDng votes are also published on
the Company's website. As described earlier, the Company also maintains email and phone contacts which
shareholders can use to make enquiries or requests. 

The Non-execuDve Directors are available to discuss any maQer stakeholders might wish to raise, and the
Executive Chair and Non-executive Directors will attend meetings with investors and analysts as required. 

Following the Company's AGM, the results of all votes will be made available on its website. 

 

By order of the Board

 
 
 
 
 
Mr M C Moore
CFO and COO
27 March 2024

 

The Board and its Committees
 

The Board is  responsible for the overal l  management of the Group including the formulaDon and approval  of the Group's
long-term objecDves  and strategy, the approval  of budgets , the overs ight of Group operaDons, the maintenance of sound
internal  control  and risk management systems and the implementaDon of Group strategy, pol icies , and plans. W hi le the
Board may delegate specific responsibi l iDes , there wi l l  be a  formal  schedule of maQers  specifical ly reserved for decis ion
by the Board. Such reserved maQers  wi l l  include, amongst other things , approval  of s ignificant capital  expenditure,
materia l  bus iness  contracts  and major corporate transactions. The Board meets  regularly to review performance.

The QCA Code recommends at least two members  of the Board comprise Non-executive Directors  determined by the Board to
be independent. The Board is  comprised of five Directors , of whom two are executive and three are non-executive. The Board
considers  a l l  three of the Non-execuDve Directors  to be independent and, as  such, the Company compl ies  with the
requirements  of the QCA Code in this  regard.

The Board recognises  that the Q C A states  that save in excepDonal  ci rcumstances, a  Chairman should not a lso fulfil  the role
of Chief ExecuDve. The Company does  not have a Chief ExecuDve but rel ies  on Mr J M Clubb as  ExecuDve Chair and Mr M C
Moore as  Chief F inancial  O fficer and Chief O peraDng O fficer to fulfil  the duDes of a  Chief ExecuDve. The Board bel ieves  this
is  appropriate due to the Company having l imited financial  and operational  scale at present. The roles  and responsibi l i ties
of Mr J M Clubb and Mr M C Moore are supported by shareholders . The Board, however, intends to appoint a  Chief
ExecuDve or Chairman in the future, at the appropriate moment, and the role of Mr J M Clubb as  an execuDve Director wi l l
be reviewed. The Company is  committed to a lways  having a  majori ty of independent Directors .

The Board has  establ ished an audit and risk CommiQee (the "Audit and Risk CommiQee"), a  nominaDon CommiQee (the
"NominaDon CommiQee") and a remuneraDon CommiQee (the "RemuneraDon CommiQee") with formal ly delegated
responsibi l i ties . The reports  of the chairs  of these Committees  are as  fol lows:



responsibi l i ties . The reports  of the chairs  of these Committees  are as  fol lows:

 

The Audit and Risk Report
 

The Audit and Risk CommiQee is  chaired by P hi l ip Taylor. I ts  other members  are Michael  Gray and David Turnbul l , with
Matthew Moore in attendance.

The CommiQee has  primary responsibi l i ty for monitoring the qual i ty of internal  controls  and ensuring that the financial
performance of the Company is  properly measured and reported on.

The CommiQee received and reviewed reports  from the Company's  management and auditor for the interim and annual
accounts  and the accounting and internal  control  systems in use throughout the Group. 

Further, the CommiQee advises  the Board on the Group's  overal l  ri sk appeDte and strategy, the risk assessment processes ,
including in relation to compl iance functions, and ass isting in overseeing implementation of the adopted strategy.

The CommiQee meets  at least three Dmes a year at appropriate intervals  in the financial  reporDng and audit cycle and
otherwise as  required. The CommiQee also discusses  Audit & Risk maQers  at meeDngs  of the Board. The CommiQee has
unrestricted access  to the Company's  auditor.

The principal  areas  of focus  during the year included the fol lowing i tems:

1. Reviewed the terms of reference for the Committee to monitor the Committee's compliance.

2. Reviewed the internal control and compliance procedures, including monitoring of progress on maQers
requiring improvement.

3. Reviewed the Interim and Annual Report and financial statements.

4. Approved the management representation letter.

5. Review of the financial projections and related funding requirements of the Group.

6. Review of the independence of the auditor, their fees and engagement letter.

8.  The CommiQee discussed the Audit Plan, the auditor's report and significant issues arising during the audit
with the auditor.

9. Reviewed the terms of the acquisiDon of Globaleye and the associated risks with the ExecuDve Directors.
We received assurance that the risks could be appropriately mitigated.

 
Appointment of the external auditor

The CommiQee reviewed the arrangements for the audit of the annual accounts and decided to request
expressions of interest from several audit firms. Following a review the CommiQee recommended to the
board that Moore Stephens Audit & Assurance (Jersey) Limited be appointed in their place, and the board
followed that recommendation.   
 
Role of the external auditor

The CommiQee monitored the relaDonship with the external  auditor to ensure their independence and objecDvity. Based on
that assessment, the Committee recommends to the Board the re-appointment of Moore Stephens Audit & Assurance (Jersey)
Limited. I n assess ing independence and objecDvity, the CommiQee cons idered the level  and nature of services  provided by
Moore Stephens Audit & Assurance (Jersey) Limited as  wel l  as  confi rmation from them that they have remained independent
within the meaning of the IESBA Code of Ethics .

The auditor did not carry out any non-audit services  during the year.

Audit process

The external  auditor prepared an audit plan for the CommiQee's  review. The audit plan set out the scope of the audit, areas
to be tested and audit timetable. Fol lowing the audit, the auditor presented their findings  to the Audit Committee. 

No major areas  of concern were highl ighted by the auditor during the year.

The principal  maQers  discussed with the audit CommiQee were the valuaDon of and accounDng for intangible assets  and
the going concern bas is  for the preparation of the accounts .

Internal audit

The Group assessed the need for an internal  audit funcDon and cons idered that in the l ight of the exisDng control
environment and the financial  pos iDon of the bus iness  there is  currently no requirement for a  separate internal  audit
function.

 

 

 

 
Mr L P C Taylor
Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee
27 March 2024

 

 

Nomination Report
 



Nomination Report
 

The NominaDon CommiQee is  chaired by David Turnbul l  and i ts  other members  are P hi l ip Taylor, Michael  Gray and Mark
Clubb. Matthew Moore acts  as  i ts  secretary.

The NominaDon CommiQee ass ists  the Board in discharging i ts  responsibi l iDes  relaDng to the composiDon of the Board. I t
i s  responsible for, and evaluates , the balance of ski l l s , experience, independence and knowledge of the Board, i ts  s ize,
structure and composiDon, reDrements , and appointments  of addiDonal  and replacement directors , and wi l l  make
appropriate recommendaDons to the Board on such maQers . The NominaDon CommiQee also cons iders  success ion
planning, cons idering the ski l l s  and expertise that wi l l  be beneficia l  to the Board in the future.

The CommiQee met three Dmes during the year. Each Dme i t reviewed the terms of reference, discussed the individual  and
col lecDve suitabi l i ty of Board members , whether the Board had operated effecDvely, the ExecuDve had performed, and the
non-execuDves  had provided appropriate chal lenge and guidance. I t was  agreed that the s ize of the Board was
commensurate with the current s ize of the bus iness  and that the composiDon provides  TEAM with a  balanced, experienced,
knowledgeable and informed Group of Directors  who bring strategic experience, fores ight, and chal lenge to the ExecuDve
and, as  such, no changes  were necessary to i ts  membership a l though this  should be reviewed regularly as  the Group grows.
Success ion planning was a lso discussed at each meeDng. The CommiQee noted that i t cons iders  the divers i ty or otherwise
of the Board and wi l l  continue to do so.

There was a  focus  in the O ctober 2022 meeDng on management responsibi l i ty and accountabi l i ty for subs idiary
businesses. The acquis i tion strategy of the Group has  been very active and there are chal lenges  associated with i t, not least
in some overseas  terri tories  where the standards  of management, transparency, record keeping and corporate governance
are not necessari ly commensurate with those in more developed financial  centres . These chal lenges, the organisaDon of
the Group and management responsibi l i ties  within i t were speci fical ly discussed and reviewed in the August 2023 meeting.

 

 

Mr D J K Turnbul l
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
27 March 2024

 

Remuneration Report
 

The Directors  present the Directors ' RemuneraDon Report (the "RemuneraDon Report") for the financial  year ended 30
September 2023.

Composition and Role of the Remuneration Committee
As detai led within the Corporate Governance report, the Board has  establ ished a RemuneraDon CommiQee which currently
cons ists  of the Non-Executive Directors , chaired by Mr M Gray.

The CommiQee determines  and agrees  with the Board the framework and pol icy of ExecuDve remuneraDon and the
associated costs  to the Group and is  responsible for the implementaDon of that pol icy. The CommiQee determines  the
specific remuneraDon packages  for each of the ExecuDve Directors  and no Director or Senior ExecuDve is  involved in any
decis ions  as  to their own remuneraDon. The CommiQee has  access  to informaDon and advice provided by the ExecuDve
Chairman and the C FO  and has  access  to independent advice where i t cons iders  i t appropriate. The CommiQee meets  at
least twice a  year.

This  report explains  how the Group has  appl ied i ts  pol icy on remuneration paid to Executive Directors .

Framework and Policy on Executive Directors' Remuneration
The Group's  remuneraDon pol icy is  des igned to provide compeDDve rewards  for i ts  ExecuDve Directors , cons idering the
performance of the Group and the individual  ExecuDves, together with comparisons  to pay condiDons throughout the
markets  in which the Group operates . I t i s  the aim of the CommiQee to aQract, retain and moDvate high cal ibre individuals
with a  compeDDve remuneraDon package. I t i s  common pracDce in the industry for total  remuneraDon to be s ignificantly
influenced by bonuses.

The CommiQee takes  the remuneraDon and employment condiDons of i ts  broader employee populaDon into account when
seXng the remuneraDon pol icy for i ts  ExecuDve Directors . The CommiQee also cons iders  i ts  responsibi l iDes  to i ts
shareholders  and wider economic environment and market developments .

The remuneraDon packages  are constructed to provide a balance between fixed and variable rewards. Therefore,
remuneraDon packages  for ExecuDve Directors  normal ly include bas ic salary, bonuses, benefits  in kind and share based
rewards. I n agreeing the level  of bas ic salaries  and annual  bonuses, the CommiQee takes  into cons ideraDon the total
remuneration that Executives  could receive.

Basic Salary
Basic salaries  are reviewed on an annual  bas is  or fol lowing a s ignificant change in responsibi l iDes. The CommiQee seeks
to establ ish a  bas ic salary for each ExecuDve determined by individual  responsibi l iDes  and performance, cognisant of
comparable salaries  for s imi lar pos itions  in companies  of a  s imi lar s ize in the same market.

Incentive Arrangements
Bonuses
These are des igned to reflect the Group's  performance, cons idering the performance of i ts  peers , the market in which the
Group operates  and the Executive's  contribution to that performance.

Performance related contractual incentive scheme
These are des igned to reward performance by the Executive Directors .

Share based rewards
The Group does  not have any options  nor an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT).

Other Employee Benefits
Depending on the terms of their contract, the ExecuDve Directors  are enDtled to a  range of benefits , including contribuDons
to individual  personal  pens ion plans, private medical  insurance, and l i fe assurance.

Service Contracts and Notice Periods
The ExecuDve Directors  are employed on rol l ing contracts  subject to s ix months ' noDce from either the ExecuDve or the
Group, given at any time.

Service contracts  do not provide expl ici tly for terminaDon payments  or damages, but the Group may make payments  in l ieu
of noDce. For this  purpose, pay in l ieu of noDce would cons ist of bas ic salary and other relevant emoluments  for the
relevant notice period excluding any bonus.

External Appointments undertaken by Executive Directors
I n the CommiQee's  opinion, experience of other companies ' pracDces  and chal lenges  is  valuable for the personal
development of the Group's  ExecuDve Directors  and for the Company. I t i s  therefore the Group's  pol icy to a l low ExecuDve
Directors  to accept Non-ExecuDve Directorships  at other companies , provided the Dme commitment does  not interfere with



Directors  to accept Non-ExecuDve Directorships  at other companies , provided the Dme commitment does  not interfere with
the Executive Directors ' responsibi l i ties  within the Group. Fees  are retained by the individual  Executive Director.

Non-Executive Directors
Al l  Non-ExecuDve Directors  have a leQer of appointment for an iniDal  period of thirty-s ix months  and thereaVer on a
rol l ing bas is  subject to three months ' notice by ei ther the Non-Executive Director or the Group, given at any time.

In the event of termination of their appointment, they are not enti tled to any compensation.

Non-ExecuDve Directors ' fees  are determined by the ExecuDve Directors  having regard to the need to aQract high cal ibre
individuals  with the right experience, the Dme and responsibi l iDes  entai led, and comparaDve fees  paid in the market in
which the Group operates . They are not el igible for pens ions.

Management Incentive Plan ("MIP")
O n 12 May 2022. the Company set up the TEAM plc M I P  to ensure selected employees  of the Company are wel l  moDvated
and idenDfy closely with the success  of the Group. There were no changes  to the Directors ' interests  in the M I P  in the
period. The exercise period for the M I P  commences  on 11 May 2024 and remains  open for two years . A new M I P  is  expected
to be put in place for the period commencing after 11 May 2024.

Directors' Emoluments
The remuneration of each Director as  l i s ted on page 58, in the Company Information section, during the year ended 30
September 2023 is  set out below:

 

 

  Pension Pension

  Contribution Contribution
Year

ended
Year ended year ended Year ended

Salary Benefi ts Bonus 30 Sept
2023

30 Sept
2022

 30 Sept 2023 30 Sept 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Executive      

  J M Clubb 132,500 5,414 25,000 162,914 142,072 10,867 9,500
  M Moore 182,500 4,505 100,000 287,005 208,468 15,200 12,792

Non-Executive  

L P C Taylor 25,000 - - 25,000 25,000 - -
M M Gray             25,000 - - 25,000 25,000 - -
D J K
Turnbul l                    

25,000 - - 25,000 25,000 -

 390,000 9,919 125,000 524,919 425,540 26,067 22,292

The highest paid Director for 2023 was Mr M C Moore receiving emoluments  of £287,005 (30 September 2022: M C Moore
£208,468). For the period to September 2023, Mr Moore was awarded a bonus of £40,000 payable in cash, and £60,000 in
new O rdinary TEAM shares, vesDng over the fol lowing three years . The costs  of the share award wi l l  be reflected in the
Consol idated Statement of Comprehensive Income as  they vest.

Mr J M Clubb has  a  salary of £250,000, of which he has  elected to waive £115,000, earning an effecDve salary of £135,000.
The amount of salary waived decreased by £10,000 over the year to 2023 and is  expected to decrease as  the bus iness
makes  progress  towards  generaDng a pos iDve cash flow. From Apri l  2024 Mr C lubb's  effecDve salary wi l l  ri se to £165,000,
as  the amount waived fa l ls  to £85,000. Mr C lubb also waived a share award bonus of £100,000 for the year to 30
September 2023, whi le accepDng a cash bonus of £25,000. The costs  of the share award wi l l  be reflected in the
Consol idated Statement of Comprehensive Income as  they vest.

The intention is  that when the bus iness  moves  into a  pos itive cash flow pos ition then the sums waived wi l l  be caught up.  In
the past two years  Mr Clubb has  waived total  remuneration of £340,000. 

Directors' Interests in Management Incentive Plan shares

30 Sept 2023 30-Sep-22
Director No. No.

                                    
  M C Moore                 650                 650  
 650 650
 

The management incenDve plan does  not qual i fy as  an employee share opDon scheme as  the shares  were purchased at fa i r
value. There are no voting rights  attached to these shares.

 Directors' Report for the year ended 30 September 2023
Introduction
The Directors  present their report and the consol idated financial  s tatements  for TEAM plc (the "Company") and i ts
subs idiaries  (the "Group") for the year ended 30 September 2023.

Results
The financial  s tatements  are set out on pages  44 to 72.

Dividend
The Directors  do not propose to pay a  dividend for the year ended 30 September 2023 (30 September 2022: £ni l ).

Capital Structure
Ful l  detai ls  of the issued share capital , a long with movements  during the year, are set out in note 17 on page 68.

Incorporation
The Company was incorporated on 4 July 2019. The Company is  a  registered publ ic company l imited by share capital  and
was incorporated and registered in Jersey, Channel  Is lands. The Company registration number is  129405.

Directors' Shareholdings



Directors' Shareholdings
The Directors  who held office during the year and their interest in the shares  of the Company were as  fol lows:

 30 Sept 2023  30 Sept 2022

Appointed Number of shares Number of shares

J M Clubb 4 July 2019 3,838,000 3,768,750

M C Moore* 1 March 2021 - -

M M Gray 1 March 2021 47,727 47,727

D J K Turnbul l 1 March 2021 33,645 33,645

L P C Taylor 1 March 2021 33,645 33,645
 

Further detai ls  of D irectors ' service contracts , remuneraDon, share interests  and interests  in opDons over the Company's
shares  can be found in the RemuneraDon Report on page 28. *Mr Moore holds  650 shares  in the Management I ncenDve
Plan.

Major Shareholdings

At the date of publ icaDon of this  report, the Company had been noDfied of the fol lowing shareholdings  of 3% or more of i ts
issued share capital :

Ordinary shares % of i ssued share
capital

Strategic Venture Partners  Europe 6,208,667 20.69
Mark Clubb 3,838,000 12.79
Schroders  plc 2,069,284 6.90
Canaccord Genuity (Marlborough Funds) 1,706,626 5.69
Metropol i tan Guarantee Limited 763,502 3.47
 

Political Contributions
The Group and Company did not make any pol iDcal  donaDons or incur any pol iDcal  expenditure during the year (30
September 2022: ni l )

Going concern
The group incurred a consol idated net loss  of £445,000 during the year ended 30 September 2023 and, as  of that date, i ts
consol idated current l iabi l iDes  exceeded i ts  consol idated current assets  by £3,319,000.  This  indicates  that the company
may not be a going concern.

The Directors  have prepared financial  projecDons along with sens iDvity analyses  of reasonably plaus ible a l ternaDve
outcomes, covering cl ients  and assets , cost inflaDon, the take up of Group services  and the potenDal  acquis iDon of further
bus inesses. The forecasts  demonstrate that the Directors  bel ieve that the Group wi l l  require addiDonal  financial  resources
to meet the cash requirements  of the Group before i t i s  expected to reach a cash flow posiDve state. The Board therefore is
acDvely managing the cost base of the Group, curtai l ing expenditure on further acquis iDons, i t i s  cons idering opDons to
improve the current revenue yields  earned, and preparing a l ternaDves  to raise further funding as  and when required,
including within the next 12 months. This  could include further use of loan notes , and the potenDal  for a  targeted equity
raise from the current shareholder base.

Taken together, whi le the plans  to miDgate the cash required, and the plans  to raise further funding, are both not certain,
they do give the Board sufficient confidence to cons ider the going concern bas is  to be appropriate for the accounts . 

Likely future developments
The Directors  are focused on bringing the Group to a  cashflow posiDve pos iDon and to be able to pay a  dividend to
shareholders  over the medium term. I n the early years  of the TEAM business  plan, this  was  not expected, nor has  i t been the
outcome. This  was  due to the startup costs  associated with the bus iness  plan, the costs  associated with running a  plc
enDty with a  l i sDng on the AI M market, together with the losses  made in the investment management divis ion. The
acquis iDons made or arranged by the Group, a long with a  pipel ine of hiring revenue generaDng individuals  and earnings
enhancing acquis iDons, together with the expected del ivery of revenue and cost synergies  from the acquired subs idiaries ,
are expected to achieve this  a im.

Events after the Reporting Period
O n 28 September 2023, TEAM announced the issue of a  loan note which at the year end had raised £425,000.  As  of the date
of these accounts  the loan note is  now at £1,135,000.

O n 12 December 2023 TEAM announced the acquis iDon of two bus inesses , Neba Financial  SoluDons Limited (Neba Wealth)
and Neba Financial  SoluDons P rivate Limited (Neba Singapore) for a  total  iniDal  cons ideraDon of £1.181 mi l l ion, saDsfied
by the issue by the Company of a  loan note which is  convertible into new TEAM shares.

O n 27 December 2023 TEAM plc announced that i t had exchanged contracts  to acquire the enDre issued share capital  of
Homebuyer F inancial  Services  Limited, a  Jersey based financial  planning bus iness , for total  cons ideraDon of £2.4 mi l l ion
payable in cash. The acquis iDon is  subject to various  condiDons, including fundrais ing by TEAM plc. As  at the date of
s igning, the process  is  continuing.

O n 27 December 2023 TEAM announced that Thornton's  management team had decided to remain independent, and TEAM
agreed to an amicable cancel lation of the proposed acquis i tion.

Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
The resoluDons being proposed at the AGM include usual  resoluDons deal ing with the ordinary bus iness  of the AGM. A
description of a l l  the resolutions  is  set out within the Notice of AGM document being posted separately.

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities
The Directors  acknowledge their responsibi l iDes  for preparing the Annual  Report and the consol idated financial
statements  in accordance with appl icable law and regulations.

Companies  (Jersey) Law 1991 requires  the Directors  to prepare consol idated financial  s tatements  for each financial  year.
Under that law. the Directors  have elected to prepare the financial  s tatements  in accordance with the requirements  of
I nternaDonal  F inancial  ReporDng Standards  ('I F RS') as  i ssued by the I nternaDonal  AccounDng Standards  Board ('I AS B').
Under Companies  (Jersey) Law 1991, the Directors  must not approve the financial  s tatements  unless  they are saDsfied that
they give a  true and fa ir view of the s i tuaDon of the Company and Group and of the profit or loss  of the Company and Group
for that period. In preparing these financial  s tatements , the Directors  are required to:

·    select suitable accounting pol icies  and apply them consistently;
·    make judgements  and accounting estimates  that are reasonable and prudent;
·    s tate whether appl icable AccounDng Standards  have been fol lowed, subject to any materia l  departures  disclosed

and explained in the financial  s tatements; and
·   prepare the financial  s tatements  on the going concern bas is  unless  i t i s  inappropriate to presume that the Company

and Group wi l l  continue in bus iness .



and Group wi l l  continue in bus iness .

The Directors  are responsible for keeping adequate accounDng records  that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's  transacDons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any Dme the financial  pos iDon of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial  s tatements  comply with the Companies  (Jersey) Law 1991. They are a lso
responsible for safeguarding the assets  of the Company and Group and hence for taking reasonable steps  for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other i rregulari ties .

Disclosure of information to the auditors     
Each of the persons  who are Directors  at the time that this  Directors ' Report i s  approved has  confi rmed that:

·    so far as  that Director is  aware, there is  no relevant audit informaDon of which the Company's  and the Group's
auditor i s  unaware, and

·    that Director has  taken al l  the steps  that ought to have been taken as  a  Director in order to be aware of any relevant
information and to establ ish that the Company's  and the Group's  auditor i s  aware of that information.

 

 

 

 

 

 

This  report was  approved by the Board on 27 March 2023 and s igned on i ts  behal f by:

 

 

 

 

 

Mr J M Clubb                                                                               Mr M C Moore

Executive Chair                                                                            CFO and COO

 
 

Directors' Biographies
 
 
 

 

Jonathan Mark Gordon Clubb
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
 
Mark began his 27 year career in investment banking at Hoare GoveQ and has
held various senior management roles at UBS Philips and Drew and BZW
(laQerly Credit Suisse First Boston). In 1997 Mark, together with six partners,
founded London-based investment banking bouDque, AlDum Capital
Partners. Following a management buyout of AlDum Capital Partners in 2008,
Mark returned to Jersey and has spent the last 12 years in investment
management, including at private client stockbroker, Collins Stewart, later
acquired by Canaccord Genuity Inc.
 
 

 

 

Matthew Charles Moore
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER & CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
 
MaQhew is a chartered accountant with a wealth of experience in senior
leadership and financial roles, having been CFO at Close Investments, CFO
and COO at Origen Financial Services (an Aegon Group company) and CFO and
COO at Ascot Lloyd, a verDcally integrated UK wealth management firm
founded by Oaktree, a leading private equity investor. MaQhew adds
significant acquisiDon and integraDon experDse to TEAM. He was responsible
for acquisiDons at Bellpenny, and subsequently Ascot Lloyd, and previously
worked in the acquisiDons team at Close Wealth Management, prior to which
he held various roles in M&A at Commerzbank Securities and ING Barings.
 

 

 

Louis Philip Chetwynd Taylor
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
 
Philip has over 40 years' experience in the finance industry, beginning his
career at PwC in London. Philip is currently a lay member of the States of
Jersey Public Accounts CommiQee and as a Director of a property
development company. Philip was the Senior Partner of PwC Channel Islands
and a Global Leader of the PwC Quality Assurance Programme. Philip has
previously served as Chairman of the States of Jersey Treasury Advisory
Company a Commissioner of the JFSC, as a Member of the Conduct and Case
Management CommiQees of the UK Financial ReporDng Council, as a Member



Management CommiQees of the UK Financial ReporDng Council, as a Member
of Jersey Financial Services Advisory Board and as Director of number of listed
and other financial services companies.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

David James Ker Turnbull
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
 
He is currently Chairman of Fiduciary SeQlements Ltd and a Non-ExecuDve
Director of mnAI Data Solutions Ltd.
 
David was previously a Managing Director at Salomon Brothers (now
CiDgroup) where he held various senior posiDons within the firm including
Global Co-Head of Japanese EquiDes and Global Head of European EquiDes.
David also served on the European Management CommiQee, Global Equity
CommiQee and Global Business PracDces CommiQee. Prior to Salomon
Brothers, David worked for Rowe and Pitman in London and Tokyo. In 1999
David cofounded and was Chief OperaDng Officer of AnEactory, a global
technology investment firm; in addiDon, he founded and acted as Chief
Executive of its Japanese subsidiary, Ant Capital.
 
From 2002 to 2010, David was a fund manager focused on Asia, first at Prodigy
Capital, where he was a Founding Partner, and then at Morant Wright. David is
a former Senior Advisor to the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, has
advised several other companies, parDcularly in the financial sector, and
served on several company boards including Whittard of Chelsea.
 
 

 

 

Michael Mckenzie Gray
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
 
Michael has over 20 years' management experience in banking. Michael
founded MMG ConsulDng Ltd in 2015, an advisory consultancy firm based in
Jersey.
 
Currently, Michael serves as a non-execuDve director for Triton Investment
Management Limited (a Swedish private equity Group), GCP Infrastructure
Investments Limited (a FTSE 250 listed company), J-Star Jersey Company
Limited (a Japanese private equity Group), Foresight Enterprise VCT plc (a
listed venture capital fund), JTC plc (a FTSE 250 listed trust and corporate
services company) and EPE Special Opportunities Limited.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TEAM
PLC
 
Opinion
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Team plc and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for
the year ended 30 September 2023 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements:
 

·      give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 30 September 2023 and of its
loss for the year then ended;



·      have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the IASB; and
·      have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

 
Basis for opinion
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Jersey, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
entities, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
 
An overview of the scope of our audit
 
Whilst planning our audit engagement, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements including the consideration of where Directors
made subjective judgements, for example, in respect of the assumptions that underlie significant
accounting estimates and their assessment of future events that are inherently uncertain.  We tailored
the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole taking into account the Group, its accounting processes
and controls and the industry in which it operates.
 
Key Audit Matters
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those
which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit
 
Going Concern
 
The Company's management has prepared
the Group's consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the
Company and Group is a going concern.
The Group has been loss making since
inception, has an accumulated deficit
balance of £4.1 million and a net current
liability position of £3.3 million as at the
reporting date, there is a risk that
management's use of the going concern
assumption in preparing the financial
statements is not appropriate.

 
Key Observations
 
Our work performed and our conclusions in respect of
going concern have been detailed in the 'Material
uncertainty related to going concern section' of our
audit report.
 

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition
 
Material misstatement due to fraudulent
financial reporting relating to revenue
recognition often results from an
overstatement of revenues through, for
example, premature revenue recognition or
recording fictitious revenues. It may also
result from an understatement of revenues
through, for example, improperly shifting
revenues to a later period.
 
The Group's main source of income is the
fees and commissions earned from the
provision of investment management and
other related services.
 
We have not become aware of opportunities
and pressure which could lead us to believe
that potential misstatements may arise as
a result of fraudulent financial reporting.
 

Our main audit procedures in respect of revenue
recognition were as follows:

§ We obtained an understanding of the policies and
procedures applied to revenue recognition, as
well as compliance therewith, including an
analysis of the effectiveness of the design and
implementation of controls related to revenue
recognition employed by the Group;

§ We performed sample-based tests of details over
the accuracy and occurrence of sales during
the year specially responsive to the risk of
fraud in revenue occurrence;

§ We performed substantive analytical procedures
to test reasonableness and completeness of
recorded revenue;

§ We performed completeness testing by selecting
a sample of contracts/invoices and tracing
back to revenue listing (i.e. floor to list); and

§ We reviewed the disclosures related to revenue
included in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

 
Key Observations
We did not identify any material issues arising from the
procedures performed in this area. We concluded that
the Group's accounting for revenue recognition, and the
related disclosures, were in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS.
 
 

 
Risk of Improper Accounting for the
Acquisition of Globaleye Group
 

 
Our main audit procedures were as follows:
 

·      We obtained understanding of the process and



 
During the year ended 30 September 2023,
the Group has completed a major
acquisition of the Globaleye Group. There is
a risk that this acquisition was not
accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 3 Business
combinations.

controls around the preparation, review and
accounting for acquisitions;

·      We reviewed the sale and purchase agreement
relevant to the acquisition of the Globaleye
Group;

·      We verified the valuation of the assets and
liabilities as at acquisition date of 31 May
2023;

·      We traced the cash consideration paid, if any,
to the bank statements;

·      We traced the equity consideration paid, if
any, to the relevant supporting documents (e.g.
share register); and,

·      We assessed the reasonableness of the
management's inputs, assumptions and
estimates regarding the intangible asset
valuation calculation arising from the
acquisition

 
Key Observations
We did not identify any material issues arising from the
procedures performed in this area. We concluded that
the accounting for the acquisition of the Globaleye
Group and the relevant disclosures in the financial
statements were in accordance with the requirements
of IFRS.
 

 
Risk of Impairment of Intangible Assets,
including Goodwill
 
The acquisitions made by the Group
(including those completed in prior periods)
have generated a significant balance of 
intangible assets i.e, customer
relationships and goodwill, being recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
 
As required by IFRS, Management performs
an annual review of the valuation of
intangible assets, including goodwill on a
cash-generating unit ("CGU") basis
including the determination of any
impairment to be recognised for the year. A
risk of material misstatement arises due to
the significant judgments and estimations
applied by the management in this process.
 

 
Our main audit procedures were as follows:
 

·      We obtained understanding of the process and
controls around the goodwill valuation and
impairment review process;

·      We assessed the reasonableness of the
inputs and assumptions applied by the
management in preparing the relevant valuation
workings;

·      We reviewed the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations performed by management; and,

·      We perform an evaluation of the key
assumptions used in the impairment
assessment calculation in order to assess
whether there are an indications of
management bias
 

Key Observations
We did not identify any material issues arising from the
procedures performed in this area. We concluded that
management's assessment of the impairment of
intangible assets including goodwill was appropriate
and in accordance with the requirements of IFRS.
 

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our application of materiality
We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements would be changed or influenced. We use materiality to determine the scope of our audit and
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the results of that work. Materiality
was determined as follows:
 
Consolidated financial statements as a whole:
Materiality was calculated at £251,300 based on a calculation of 3.5% of preliminary net assets. This
benchmark is considered the most appropriate because, based on our professional judgement, we
considered that this is the primary measure used by the users of the consolidated financial statements
in assessing the performance and value of the Group.
 
Performance materiality was set at 60% of materiality and was calculated at £150,780.
 
Communication of misstatements to the Board:
We agreed with the Directors that any misstatement above £12,565 identified during our audit will be
reported to the Audit Committee, together with any misstatement below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.
 
As noted above, the materiality levels are calculated based upon preliminary net assets. We have
performed a reassessment of materiality based on the final net asset balance and have concluded that
the materiality levels remain appropriate at the conclusion of the audit as these are more conservative.
 
Material uncertainty related to going concern
 
We draw attention to note 2, in the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis but with a material
uncertainty related to going concern. This assessment has taken into consideration all available
information for the foreseeable future, in particular for the 12 months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. This assessment included consideration of Group's profit and loss
projections and budget, and the ability of the Group to raise further financing. These conditions, along
with other matters as set in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.



uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. In assessing the appropriateness
of the going concern assumption used in preparing the financial statements, our procedures included,
amongst others:
 

§ A critical assessment of management's assessment of going concern and the basis for their
assertion that the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements was
appropriate;

§ A critical assessment of the assumptions underlying the budget/cash flow forecast for the year to
September 2027; and

§ A critical assessment of post year-end trading, credit facilities and other relevant information.
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.
 
 
Other information
 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report set out on page 3 to 36 other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
 
We have nothing to report in this regard.
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
 
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment which we obtained during
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' report.
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

·      Adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
·      returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
·      the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
·      we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

 
Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated financial statements
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities on page 35, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
 
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
 
 
 
Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below.
 
The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing
appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the



appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those
charged with governance of the entity and management.
 
Our approach was as follows:
 
 • We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group
and determined that the most significant are those that relate to the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, IFRS
and the AIM Rules for Companies. We also reviewed the laws and regulations applicable to the Group
that have an indirect impact on the financial statements.
 
• We gained an understanding of how the Group is complying with Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, IFRS
and the AIM Rules for Companies by making inquiries of management. We corroborated our inquiries
through our review of minutes of Board of Directors meetings and the review of various correspondence
examined in the context of our audit and noted that there was no contradictory evidence.
 
 • We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur, by meeting with management to understand where they considered
there was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered performance targets and their propensity to
influence management to manage earnings and revenue by overriding internal controls. We performed
specific procedures to respond to the fraud risk of inappropriate revenue recognition. Our procedures also
included testing a risk-based sample of journal entries that may have been posted with the intention of
overriding internal controls to manipulate earnings. These procedures were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error.
 
 • Based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of management and those
charged with governance and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.
 
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become
aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and
transactions reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.
 
 
 
Use of our report
 
This report is made solely to the Group's shareholders as a body, in accordance with Article 113A of the
Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Group's shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Group and the Group's shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.
 
 
 
Phillip Callow
 
For and on behalf of Moore Stephens Audit & Assurance (Jersey) Limited
1 Waverley Place
Union Street
St Helier
Jersey
Channel Islands
JE4 8SG
 
Dated:

 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended
30 September 2023
 



Year to Year to

30 Sept 2023 30 Sept 2022

Note £'000 £'000

Revenues 3 5,323 2,120

Cost of sales (924) (414)

Operating expenses 4,5 (6,474) (3,271)

Operating loss (2,075) (1,565)

  

Operating loss  before acquis i tion costs (1,853) (1,436)

Acquis i tion costs   21 (222) (129)

Operating loss after acquisition costs (2,075) (1,565)

  

Fair value gains  on financial  instruments 15 1,680
 

-

Share award expense (13)                             -

Other income and charges 7 (35) (23)

Loss on ordinary activities before tax (443) (1,588)

Taxation 8 (2) 64

Loss for the year and total comprehensive
loss (445) (1,524)

  
 

Loss  per share (bas ic and di luted) 21 £(0.02) £(0.08)

 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of 30 September 2023
 

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

Note £'000 £'000

Non-current assets  
Intangible assets 9 12,398 9,276

Property, plant & equipment 10 654 737

Deferred tax 8 152 156

Long term deposit 12 71 63

13,275 10,232

 

Current assets   

Trade, other receivables , and prepayments 14 731 910

Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,938 1,747

2,669 2,657

 
Trade and other payables: amounts  fa l l ing due within one year 15 (5,988) (2,640)

 
Net current (liabilities)/assets (3,319) 17

 
Total assets less current liabilities 9,956 10,249

 
Trade and other payables: amounts  fa l l ing due after one
Year                                                                                                       15 (1,731)

                                 
(1,592)

 

Net assets 8,225 8,657

 
Equity   

Stated Capital 17 12,349 12,349

Share award reserve 13                            -

Retained loss (4,137) (3,692)

Total Equity 8,225 8,657
 

The consol idated financial  s tatements  on pages  44 to 72 were approved and authorised for i ssue by the Board
of Directors  on the 27 March 2023 and were s igned on i ts  behal f by:

 

 

Mr J M Clubb                                                                               Mr M C Moore

Executive Chair                                                                            CFO and COO



 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30
September 2023
 

Stated
capital

Share
award

reserve

Retained
earnings Total 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
     
At 1 October 2022 12,349 - (3,692) 8,657
Loss  for the year - - (445) (445)

Share award for the year - 13 - 13

At 30 September 2023 12,349 13 (4,137) 8,225

 

Stated
capital

Share
award

reserve

Retained
earnings Total

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

     
At 1 October 2021 9,606 - (2,168) 7,438

New share Capital 2,743 - - 2,743

Loss  for the year - - (1,524) (1,524)

At 30 September 2022 12,349 - (3,692) 8,657
 

 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30
September 2023

Year to Year to      

30 Sept 2023 30 Sept 2022

Note £'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities  
Loss  for the year before tax (443) (1,588)

Adjustments  to cash flows from non-cash i tems:   

Depreciation and amortisation 6 1,166 624

Finance costs 7 35 23

Fair value (gains)/losses  on financial  instruments 15 (1,680) -

Share award expense 13 -

Trade and other receivables (336) (362)

Trade and other payables 425 (61)

Net cash outflow from operating activities (820) (1,364)

  
Cash flows from investing activities   

Acquis i tion of subs idiary - (3,496)

Payment of deferred cons ideration 15 (20) (1,534)

Acquis i tion of property, plant, and equipment (45) (15)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (65) (5,045)

  
Cash flows from financing activities   

Lease l iabi l i ty paid (201) (85)

Issue of share capital - 2,743

Proceeds from loan notes  issued 15 425 -

Net cash flow from financing activities 224 2,658

  
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (661) (3,751)

Cash and cash equivalents  at beginning of year 1,747
                             

4,921

Cash and cash equivalents  from subs idiaries  at acquis i tion 852
                                 

577
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year*                     13 1,938 1,747
 

*Included in cash and cash equivalents  at the year end is  £694,000 of fixed term deposits  held in l ien by the
United Arab Emirates  government as  part of regulatory compl iance.

The consol idated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2023 is  set out above.
Detai ls  of additions  and disposals  of which are given in note 10.

Non-cash items:



Non-cash items:
During the year, Globaleye (BVI ) Limited ("Globaleye Group") was  acquired for a  total  cons ideraDon of
£3,672,375, which comprised of share capital  exchange of £2,545,533 and loan notes  of £1,126,821. These
amounts  are payable post year end and see note 15.
 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30
September 2023

 
1.         General information

TEAM plc (the "Company" and "Group") i s  a  Registered P ubl ic Company l imited by share capital
incorporated and registered in Jersey, Channel  I s lands  on 4 July 2019. The registered Company number
is  129405. The principal  place of bus iness  is  6 Caledonia Place, St Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NG.
 
The principal  acDviDes  of the Group are the provis ion of investment management, financial  advisory
services  and insurance brokering services .
 
These financial  s tatements  are presented in Pound Sterl ing (£), the funcDonal  currency of the Group,
rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000), which is  the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates .
 

2.         Accounting policies
 
Summary of s igni ficant accounting pol icies  and key accounting estimates
The principal  accounDng pol icies  adopted in the preparaDon of these financial  s tatements  are set out
below. These pol icies  have been cons istently appl ied to the period presented, unless  otherwise stated.
 
Statement of compl iance
These consol idated financial  s tatements  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements  of
I nternaDonal  F inancial  ReporDng Standards  (I F RS) as  i ssued by the I nternaDonal  AccounDng Standards
Board (I AS B) and the requirements  of the Companies  (Jersey) Law 1991. The Group's  consol idated
financial  s tatements  have been prepared under the historical  cost convenDon, except for financial
instruments , which are stated in accordance with I F RS 9 F inancial  I nstruments: recogniDon and
measurement.
 
The preparaDon of financial  s tatements  in compl iance with I F RS requires  the use of certain criDcal
accounDng esDmates. I t a lso requires  the Directors  to exercise judgement in applying the Group's
accounDng pol icies . The areas  where s ignificant judgements  and esDmates  have been made in
preparing the financial  s tatements  are disclosed in more detai l  under the criDcal  accounDng
judgements  pol icy.
 
Basis of consolidated financial statements
The Group's  financial  s tatements  consol idate those of the parent company and al l  i ts  subs idiaries  as  of
30 September 2023. Control  i s  achieved where the Company is  exposed, or has  rights , to variable
returns  from i ts  involvement with an investee company and can affect those returns  through i ts  power
over the other enti ty; power general ly arises  from holding a  majori ty of voting rights .
 
Al l  transacDons and balances  between Group companies  are el iminated on consol idaDon, including
unreal ised gains  and losses  on transacDons between Group companies . Amounts  reported in the
financial  s tatements  of subs idiaries  have been adjusted where necessary to ensure cons istency with the
accounting pol icies  adopted by the Group.
P rofit or loss  and other comprehensive income of the subs idiaries  acquired or disposed of during the
year are recognised from the effecDve date of acquis iDon, or up to the effecDve date of disposal , as
appl icable.
 
The Group aQributes  total  comprehensive income or loss  of subs idiaries  between the owners  of the
parent given al l  subs idiaries  are 100% owned.
 
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
There are several standards, amendments to standards, and interpretaDons which have
been issued by the IASB that are effecDve in future accounDng periods that the Group has
decided not to adopt early.
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2023:

·    IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
·    Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendments to IAS 1
·    Disclosure of AccounDng Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS PracDce Statement

2
·    Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8
·    Deferred Tax related to Assets and LiabiliDes arising from a Single TransacDon -

Amendments to IAS 12
 

The Group does not believe that the standards not yet effecDve, will have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
 
Going concern
The group incurred a consol idated net loss  of £445,000 during the year ended 30 September 2023 and,
as  of that date, i ts  consol idated current l iabi l iDes  exceeded i ts  consol idated current assets  by
£3,319,000.  This  indicates  that the company may not be a going concern.

The Directors  have prepared financial  projecDons along with sens iDvity analyses  of reasonably
plaus ible a l ternaDve outcomes, covering cl ients  and assets , cost inflaDon, the take up of Group
services  and the potenDal  acquis iDon of further bus inesses. The forecasts  demonstrate that the
Directors  bel ieve that the Group wi l l  require addiDonal  financial  resources  to meet the cash
requirements  of the Group before i t i s  expected to reach a cash flow posiDve state. The Board therefore
is  acDvely managing the cost base of the Group, curtai l ing expenditure on further acquis iDons, i t i s
cons idering opDons to improve the current revenue yields  earned, and preparing a l ternaDves  to raise
further funding as  and when required, including within the next 12 months. This  could include further
use of loan notes , and the potentia l  for a  targeted equity ra ise from the current shareholder base.

Taken together, whi le the plans  to miDgate the cash required, and the plans  to raise further funding, are
both not certain, they do give the Board sufficient confidence to cons ider the going concern bas is  to be
appropriate for the accounts . 

 



 

Cri tical  accounting estimates  and judgements
The Group makes  certain esDmates  and assumpDons in the preparaDon of financial  s tatements .
EsDmates  and judgements  are conDnual ly evaluated based on historical  experience and other factors ,
including expectaDons of future events  that are bel ieved to be reasonable that best reflects  the
conditions  and ci rcumstances  that exist at the reporting date.
 
The principal  esDmates  and judgements  that could have an effect upon the Group's  financial  results
are the useful  economic l ives  of property, plant and equipment, the impairment of trade receivables ,
goodwi l l  and intangible assets , deferred cons ideraDon payable and the provis ion for income and
deferred taxes. Further detai ls  of these esDmates  and judgements  are set out in the related notes  to the
consol idated financial  s tatements  for these i tems.
 
Revenue recognition
The Group has  appl ied I F RS15 - Revenue from Contracts  with Customers. I F RS 15 establ ishes  the
principles  that an enDty appl ies  when reporDng informaDon about the nature, amount, Dming and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows from a contract with a  customer. Applying I F RS 15, an enDty
recognises  revenue to depict the transfer of promised services  to the customer in an amount that
reflects  the cons ideration to which the enti ty expects  to be enti tled in exchange for those services .
 
The Group recognises  revenue on the transfer of services  in accordance with the contractual  terms
entered with cl ients . Fees  and commiss ions  are received on a variety of di fferent payment terms.
 

·    Commiss ion: Trading and foreign exchange commiss ion income is  recognised on a trade date
bas is .

·    Management Fees: Fund and investment management, introductory and sponsor fees  are
recognised on an accrual  bas is  over time.

·    Treasury services: Treasury fees  are recognised on an accrual  bas is  over time.
·    Financial  advice services: These are recognised on an accrual  bas is  over time.

 
Contracts  are assessed to determine whether they contain a  s ingle combined performance obl igation or
mulDple performance obl igaDons. I f appl icable the total  transacDon price is  a l located amongst the
various  performance obl igations  based on their relative stand-alone sel l ing prices .
 
Revenue is  recognised at the point in Dme when the Group saDsfies  performance obl igaDons by
transferring the promised services  to i ts  customers. The Group has  no unsaDsfied performance
obl igations  and so does  not recognise any contract l iabi l i ties  for cons ideration.
 
I f the Group saDsfies  a  performance obl igaDon before i t receives  the cons ideraDon, the Group
recognises  ei ther a  contract asset or a  receivable in i ts  consol idated statement of financial  pos iDon,
depending on whether something other than the passage of Dme is  required before the cons ideraDon is
due.

 
 
Segment reporting
I F RS 8 requires  that an enDty disclose financial  and descripDve informaDon about i ts  reportable
segments , which are operaDng segments  or aggregaDons of operaDng segments . O peraDng segments
are idenDfied based on internal  reports  that are regularly reviewed by the Board to a l locate resources
and to assess  performance. Us ing the Group's  internal  management reporDng as  a  starDng point the
s ingle reporting segment set out in note 3 has  been identi fied.
Foreign currency transactions  and balances
The individual  financial  s tatements  of each group enDty are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the enDty operates  (i ts  funcDonal  currency). For the purposes  of the
consol idated financial  s tatements , the results  and financial  pos ition are presented in Sterl ing £.
 
For the purposes  of presenDng consol idated financial  s tatements , the assets  and l iabi l iDes  of the
group's  foreign operaDons are trans lated from their funcDonal  currency to Sterl ing £ us ing the clos ing
exchange rate. I ncome and expenses  are trans lated us ing the average rate for the period, unless  the
exchange rate fluctuates  s ignificantly during the period, in which case exchange rates  that the dates  of
the transacDons are used. Exchange differences  are recognised in the profit or loss  in the period in
which they arise.

 
Exchange differences  aris ing on the seQlement of monetary i tems, and on the retrans laDon of monetary
items are included in statement of total  comprehensive income in operating expenses.
 
Tax
The tax expense for the period represents the sum of the tax currently payable and the
deferred tax.
 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabiliDes in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computaDon of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabiliDes are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deducDble
temporary differences can be utilised.
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporDng date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the asset is realised.
 
Deferred tax assets and liabiliDes are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabiliDes and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxaDon authority and the Group intends to seQle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
 
Where available, Group losses are transferred between companies who pay the same rate
of tax to the same taxation authority.
 
 
Property, plant, and equipment
P roperty, plant, and equipment are stated in the Statement of F inancial  Pos iDon at cost, less  any
subsequent accumulated depreciaDon and subsequent accumulated impairment losses . Assets  are
recognised when i t i s  probable that the future economic benefits  associated with the asset wi l l  flow to
the enDty and the cost can be measured rel iably. Cost includes  expenditure that i s  directly aQributable



the enDty and the cost can be measured rel iably. Cost includes  expenditure that i s  directly aQributable
to the acquis i tion of i tems.

 
Ful ly depreciated assets  are retained in the cost and the related accumulated depreciaDon unDl  they
are removed from service. I n the case of disposals , assets  and related depreciaDon are removed from
the financial  s tatements  at the net amount. P roceeds from disposal  are charged or credited to the
statement of income.

 
Depreciation
DepreciaDon is  charged so as  to write off the cost or valuaDon of assets  over their useful  economic
l ives , us ing the straight-l ine method.

 
 

Asset class                                                           Depreciation rate
Computer hardware                                            5 years
Equipment & fixtures                                            4 years
Leasehold Improvements                                     5 years
Right of use assets                                              Over the term of the lease

 
Business combinations
The acquisiDon of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method when the Group
undertakes business combinaDons. The Group has acquired a business when it obtains
control over a collecDon of assets and the acquired assets and acDviDes that include inputs,
substantive processes and the ability to produce outputs.
 
All consideraDon transferred is recognised at fair value at the date of acquisiDon. This
includes assets transferred, liabiliDes incurred by the owners and equity instruments issued
by the Group. ConDngent consideraDon is iniDally recognised at fair value. If the conDngent
consideraDon is classified as equity, it is not remeasured, and seQlement is accounted for
within equity. If the conDngent consideraDon is classified as a financial liability, it is
remeasured to fair value at each reporDng date, with the movement in fair value being
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
 
At acquisiDon date, to the extent that the total consideraDon transferred, fair value of prior
equity interests and NCI are greater than the net assets acquired, goodwill is recognised. If
the fair value of the net assets acquired is more than the total consideraDon transferred,
then the difference is recognised in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
 

 
 
Intangible assets
The value of the customer relaDonships  has  been calculated us ing the excess  earnings  approach
discounted us ing the Group's  esDmated cost of capital . The average l i fe of a  customer relaDonship has
been set based on the customer base and represents  both the period over which the value of such
relaDonships  has  been calculated and the amorDsaDon period of the intangible asset aris ing. The
Group amortises  intangible assets  over the fol lowing periods:
 

    Customer relationships                                                 5 -10 years
 

On each reporDng date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indicaDon that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indicaDon exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is esDmated to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
I f the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generaDng unit) i s  esDmated to be less  than i ts  carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generaDng unit) i s  reduced to i ts  recoverable amount.
An impairment loss  i s  recognised as  an expense immediately.
 
Goodwi l l
Goodwi l l  represents  the future economic benefits  aris ing from a bus iness  combinaDon that are not
individual ly idenDfied and separately recognised. Goodwi l l  i s  not amorDsed, but i t i s  tested for
impairment annual ly, or more frequently i f events  or changes  in ci rcumstances  indicate that i t might be
impaired, and is  carried at cost less  accumulated impairment losses .
 
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents  comprise cash on hand and cal l  deposits , and other short-term highly l iquid
investments  that are readi ly convertible to a  known amount of cash and are subject to an
ins ignificant risk of change in value. Such investments  are those with original  maturiDes  of three
months  or less .
 
Trade receivables
Trade and other receivables  are recognised iniDal ly at fa i r value. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost us ing the effective interest method, less  provis ion for impairment.
 
A provis ion for the impairment of trade receivables  is  based on the l i feDme expected credit loss  and
past and forward-looking information.
 
Payables
Payables  are obl igaDons to pay for goods or services  that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
bus iness . Trade and other payables  are measured at iniDal  recogniDon at fa i r value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost us ing the effective interest rate method.

 
Leases
Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and liabilities for significant leases.
 
The Group has elected and applied the exempDon not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabiliDes for short-term leases of equipment. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
 
At incepDon of a contract under IFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.
 
The Group recognises a right-to-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement



The Group recognises a right-to-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement
date.
 
The right-to-use asset is iniDally measured at cost, which comprises the iniDal amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any direct costs incurred and an esDmate of costs to restore the underlying asset,
less any incentives received.

 
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term.
The lease liability is iniDally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amorDsed cost using the effecDve interest
rate method.
 
The Group presents right-of-use assets in property, plant and equipment and lease
liabilities in loans and borrowings in the Statement of Financial Position.
 
Financial  instruments
The Group has  adopted IFRS 9 in respect of financial  instruments .
 
F inancial  assets , including trade and other receivables , cash and bank balances  and long term
deposits , are iniDal ly recognised at transacDon price, unless  the arrangement consDtutes  a  financing
transacDon, where the transacDon is  measured at the present value of the future receipts  discounted at
a market rate of interest. Such assets  are subsequently carried at amorDsed cost us ing the effecDve
interest method. At the end of each reporDng period financial  assets  measured at amorDsed cost are
assessed for l i feDme expected credit losses  based on past and forward-looking informaDon. I f an asset
is  impaired the impairment loss  i s  the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of
the esDmated cash flows discounted at the asset's  original  effecDve interest rate. The impairment loss
is  recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive I ncome. I f there is  a  decrease in the impairment loss
aris ing from an event occurring aVer the impairment was  recognised, the impairment is  reversed. The
reversal  i s  such that the current carrying amount does  not exceed what the carrying amount would have
been had the impairment not previous ly been recognised. The impairment reversal  i s  recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
 
F inancial  assets  are derecognised when (a) the contractual  rights  to the cash flows from the asset
expire or are seQled, or (b) substanDal ly a l l  the risks  and rewards  of the ownership of the asset are
transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some s ignificant risks  and rewards  of
ownership, control  of the asset has  been transferred to another party who has  the pracDcal  abi l i ty to
uni lateral ly sel l  the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional  restrictions.

 
Financial  l iabi l iDes , including trade and other payables  and loan notes  are iniDal ly recognised at
transacDon price, unless  the arrangement consDtutes  a  financing transacDon, where the debt
instrument is  measured at the present value of the future payments  discounted at a  market rate of
interest.
 
Debt instruments  are subsequently carried at amortised cost, us ing the effective interest rate method.
 
F inancial  instruments  are categorised as  fa i r value through profit or loss  i f they are derivaDves, held
for trading or des ignated as  such on iniDal  recogniDon. Gains  and losses  on such financial  l iabi l iDes
are recognised in the income statement.
 
Trade payables  are obl igaDons to pay for goods or services  that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of bus iness  from suppl iers . Accounts  payable are class ified as  current l iabi l iDes  i f payment is
due within one year or less . I f not, they are presented as  non-current l iabi l iDes. Trade payables  are
recognised iniDal ly at transacDon price and subsequently measured at amorDsed cost us ing the
effecDve interest method. F inancial  l iabi l iDes  are derecognised when the l iabi l i ty i s  exDnguished, that
is  when the contractual  obl igation is  discharged, cancel led, or expires .
 
Stated capital
O rdinary shares  are class ified as  equity. Equity instruments  are measured at the fa ir value of the cash
or other resources  received or receivable, net of the direct costs  of i ssuing the equity instruments . I f
payment is  deferred and the Dme value of money is  materia l , the iniDal  measurement is  on a present
value bas is .
 
Share award reserve
The Grant date fa ir value of equity-seQled share-based payments  is  recognised as  an expense over the
period when the associated service is  rendered (the vesDng period), with a  corresponding increase in
equity. VesDng condiDons, other than market condiDons, are used to determine the number of awards
that are expected to vest, the esDmate being adjusted at each period as  necessary. I f these condiDons
are not met, the cumulative expense recognised in relation to these awards  wi l l  be ni l .
 
W here awards  are modified, the minimum expense recognised wi l l  a lways  be the grant date fa ir value
of the original  award, provided the non-market vesDng condiDons of the original  award were met. To
the extent the modificaDon results  in any incremental  expense determined at the date of modificaDon,
this  wi l l  be recognised over the remaining vesting period of the modified award.
 
W hen an award is  cancel led the remaining amount of the grant date fa ir value that has  not a l ready
been recognised, wi l l  be recognised immediately as  an expense in the income statement.

 
 

Trans lation reserve
This  reserve contains  the trans laDon differences  that arise from the trans laDon of the foreign
control led enDDes of the Group into the presentaDon currency for consol idaDon. W hen the Group loses
control  of a  foreign enti ty, the amounts  in this  reserve wi l l  be recognised in profi t or loss .
 
Retained losses
Retained losses  represent the cumulative earnings  or losses  of the Group, less  any dividends declared.
 

3.    Operating Segments
Fol lowing the acquis iDons of the subs idiaries , the Group now idenDfies three principal  operaDng
segments: Investment Management, Advisory and International .
 
I nvestment Management provides investment management services  for individuals , trusts , sovereign
agencies  and corporaDons, Advisory provides  personal  financial  advice, investment consulDng, and
treasury advisory services . Both segments  are in Jersey, Channel  I s lands. I nternaDonal  provides



treasury advisory services . Both segments  are in Jersey, Channel  I s lands. I nternaDonal  provides
personal  financial  advice services  and fund distribution in the Middle East, As ia  & Africa.
 

No customer represents  more than 10% of Group revenues (FY 22: ni l )
 

The fol lowing table represents  revenue and cost information for the Group's  bus iness  segments:
 

Investment
Management

Advisory Internat-
ional

Group and
consolidation
adjustments

Group

2023 Operating Segments £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 951 3,039 1,332 1 5,323
Cost of sales (372) - (497) (55) (924)
Contribution 579 3,039 835 (54) 4,399
Operating expenses (1,416) (2,052) (967) (651) (5,086)
Underlying profit before tax (837) 987 (132) (705) (687)
Acquis i tion related costs - - - (222) (222)
Amortisation of acquired
cl ients  relationships

- - - (995) (995)

Interest payments - - - (35) (35)
Deferred cons ideration fa ir
value adjustments

- - - 1,680 1,680

Share award expense - - - (13) (13)
Net changes  in the value of
non-current asset

- - - (171) (171)

Profit before tax (837) 987 (132) (461) (443)
Tax (4) 5 (3) - (2)
Profit/(loss) for the year (841) 992 (135) (461) (445)
 

 
Investment

Management
Advisory* Internat-

ional
 

Group and
consolidation
adjustments*

Group

2022 Operating Segments £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 1,025 1,094 - 1 2,120
Cost of sales (386) - - (28) (414)
Contribution 639 1,094 - (27) 1,706
Operating expenses (1,255) (605) - (658) (2,518)
Underlying profit before tax (616) 489 - (685) (812)
Acquis i tion related costs - - - (129) (129)
Amortisation of an acquired
cl ients  relationships

- - - (543) (543)

Changes  in fa i r value - - - (23) (23)
Net changes  in the value of
non-current asset

- - - (81) (81)

Profit before tax (616) 489 - (1,461) (1,588)
Tax 67 (3) - - 64
Profit/(loss) for the year (549) 486 - (1,461) (1,524)
 
* revenue and costs  recategorized to be cons istent with 2023 segments
 

4.    Staff costs
The aggregate payrol l  costs  (including Directors ' remuneration) were as  fol lows:
 

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 3,359 1,678
 
At 30 September 2023, the Group had 87 staff (30 September 2022: 33), with 52 in the UAE, 29 in Jersey,
3 in S ingapore and 1 each in the UK , South Africa and Malays ia  (30 September 2022: 32 in Jersey and 1
in the UK). There were also 10 sel f-employed adviser, 8 with BVI contracts  and 2 in Jersey.

5.    Directors' remuneration 
 
The Directors ' remuneration for the year was  as  fol lows:

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Executive    
  J M Clubb 163 142

  M C Moore 287 208

 

Non-Executive   

  L P C Taylor 25 25

  M M Gray               25 25

  D J K Turnbul l                    25 25

  525 425
 

Total Total

30 Sept 2023 30 Sept22
Equity settled share-based payments £'000 £'000

J M Clubb                 5                  -  
M C Moore 8 -



M C Moore 8 -
                                                                                                                                                                        13

Directors' Interests in Management Incentive Plan ("MIP")shares
Total Total

30 Sept 2023 30 Sept22
No. No.

M C Moore                 650                  650  
 
O n 12th May 2022 the Company set up a revised M I P. Mr C lubb chose not to parDcipate in the new
plan, and Mr Moore was awarded 650 shares , with two other non-Directors  of TEAM being awarded
100 shares  each. O ne of those directors  has  now leV the Group, and their shares  acquired back and
cancel led.
 
The maximum di luDon under the M I P  has  been reduced from 8.5% to 7.5% fol lowing the cancel laDon of
the shares  issued to the departed individual . O ne-third of the M I P  wi l l  be set with reference to the TEAM
plc share price, with ful l  pay out when the share price is  twice the SubscripDon P rice of 60 pence. Two-
thirds  of the scheme wi l l  be set with reference to the TEAM plc market capital isaDon, with ful l  pay out
when the market capital isation is  equal  to or exceeds £40 mi l l ion.

 
6.    Operating loss

Is  s tated after charging:
Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Auditors ' remuneration - audit fees 40 21

Amortisation of intangibles 995 543

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 30 17

Depreciation of right of use asset 141 64

Interest on right of use asset 40 30
1,246 675

 
7.    Interest payable and similar expenditure

Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Interest payable - Right of use asset 40 30
Unwinding of discounted long term deposit (8) (8)

Other interest payable 3 1

35 23
 

8.    Taxation
Year to Year to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Income tax charge 2 (64)
 

Regulated financial  services  bus inesses  in Jersey pay a  flat corporaDon tax rate of 10%. The Treasury
Services  bus iness  is  not regulated and has  a  ni l  tax rate. The Globaleye enDDes are subject to tax rates
of 17% (Singapore), 3% (Labuan), between 7 and 27%% (South Africa), and 0% (UAE and BVI ). The
increased tax recovery in the year reflects  the higher taxable losses  in the period.

The di fferences  are reconci led below: Year to Year to
30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000
Loss  before tax appl icable to financial  service companies  from date of
acquis i tion to year end

(654) (742)

  
Tax for financial  service companies  at 10% (65) (74)

Effect of permanent expense not deductible in determining taxable profi t 9 10

Tax effect of Group losses  uti l i sed within the Group 65 -

Group losses  uti l i sed for prior year tax payable 10 -

Tax increase from effect of unrel ieved tax losses  carried forward (17) -

Total  tax decrease 2 (64)  
 
  Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties

Year to Year  to

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Losses  brought forward 153 89

Losses  for the year 85 64

Uti l i sed within the Group (74) -

Losses  used in prior year tax charges (13) -

Losses  carried forward 151 153
Capital  a l lowances 1 3

 Deferred tax asset 152 156
 



 
9.    Intangible assets

O n 31 May 2023, TEAM plc acquired the economic rights  to the share capital  of Globaleye (BVI ) Limited
("Globaleye"), a  trading company incorporated and registered in The BriDsh Virgin I s lands, which is  the
parent company for the Globaleye Group companies  l i s ted in note 11. The total  headl ine cons ideraDon
for Globaleye was £4,991,000 plus  a  potenDal  earn out of up to £800,000. The headl ine cons ideraDon
was to be saDsfied by the issue of 6,208,667 new O rdinary TEAM shares  (being £2,546,000 at a  share
price of 41 pence per share) plus  a  loan note converDble into up to 5,964,138 new O rdinary TEAM
shares, with a  headl ine value of £2,445,000.
 
The 6,208,667 shares  were issued on 1st November 2023. As  at 30 September 2023 the mid-market
share price for TEAM ordinary shares  had fa l len from 41 pence when the commercial  terms for the
transacDon were agreed, to 36 pence, leading to a  reducDon in the value of the equity to be issued from
£2,546,000 to £2,236,000. Consequently £310,000 is  included as  a  fa i r value gain on financial
instruments  in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
 
The convers ion of the converDble loan note is  conDngent cons ideraDon and is  dependent on
saDsfacDon of the exercise condiDons, and subject to the right of set off against cla ims against the
loan note holder. These cla ims include a shorEal l  of the value of the net assets  acquired against an
agreed target which has  been assessed as  a  shorEal l  of £1,319,000. The £1.3mi l l ion is  adjusted
against the ini tia l  cons ideration as  the shortfal l  existed at the acquis i tion date. The total  cons ideration
is  recorded as  the headl ine cons ideraDon of £4,991,000 less  the shorEal l  of £1,319,000, being
£3,672,000.
 
The remaining balance for the converDble loan note was £1,126,000.  I n the view of the Directors , as
part of the normal  post-acquis iDon review of the bus iness , breaches  of warranDes have been
idenDfied. The extens ive cla ims avai lable to TEAM plc aris ing from the clear breaches  of warranDes by
the warrantor wi l l  result in warranty cla ims whose value wi l l  exceed the remaining balance.
Consequently this  l iabi l i ty has  been wriQen down to ni l  and is  included in the fa ir value gains  on
financial  instruments  in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
 
I ncluded in the Statement of Comprehensive I ncome are £116,000 of transacDons costs  relaDng to this
acquis i tion.

 
Any goodwi l l  aris ing through bus iness  combinaDons is  a l located to individual  assets  of i ts
subs idiaries  including idenDfied intangible assets . A summary of the fa ir values  of each major class  of
cons ideration in relation to Globaleye Group companies  is  l i s ted in the next tables:
 

 As at 31 May 2023
£'000

Categorisation of assets: Globaleye (BVI) Limited  
Goodwi l l 4,117
Non-current fixed asset 58
Cash and cash equivalents 852
Trade and other receivables 178
Trade and other payables (1,533)
 Total Consideration 3,672
 
The Directors  have assessed the future contribuDon of the Globaleye Group to TEAM, and as  a  result of
the expected flow of cl ient assets  into the TEAM M P S, they bel ieve the goodwi l l  balance of £4,117k is
supported by the future profi t contribution to the Group.
 
The Group cons iders  both qual i taDve and quanDtaDve factors  when determining whether goodwi l l  or
an intangible asset may be impaired. At each year end, the Group reviews al l  intangible assets  and
goodwi l l  separately and individual ly to assess  and idenDfy any indicators  of impairment. Us ing an
excess  earnings  approach discounted based on approved budgets  and  the fol lowing assumptions:

·    Weighted average cost of capital  of 11.25% - based publ ic and industry standards.  
·    Revenue forecast:

o  Intangible - a  lost customer attri tion rate of 5% for identi fiable customer relationships
o  Goodwi l l  - a  growth rate of 5% for total  revenue
o  Based on past performance and managements  future expectaDons as  part of the

budgets , taking into account growth in the industry.
·    Growth rate for staff and other costs  in l ine with the revenue %'s  above - as  these costs  are

associated with the revenue of the bus iness , they wi l l  adjust in l ine with the related
projections  for revenue.

·    Forecast review period of 10 years  - based on the usual  contractual  period with cl ients  and to
l ink together with the amortisation period of the intangibles .

 
The Group idenDfied at no impairments  of intangible assets  at 30 September 2023. The Group wi l l
continue to monitor a l l  assets  at each year end and wi l l  impair assets  where indicators  are present.

Year to Year to
30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000
Customer Relationships 6,386               7,381
Goodwi l l 6,012               1,895
Total Intangible Asset 12,398              9,276
 
 

 

Theta Enhanced
Asset

Management
Limited

JCAP
Limited

Omega
Financial
Services
Limited

Concentric
Group Limited

GE BVI
Limited

Total
customer 

relationships

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost       
At 1 October 2022 1,059 1,759 3,279 2,091 - 8,188
At 30 September
2023

1,059 1,759 3,279 2,091 - 8,188

Amortisation  
At 1 October 2022 282 440 55 30 - 807
Charge for the
year

106 352 327 210 - 995

At 30 September



At 30 September
2023

388 792 382 240 - 1,802

Carrying Amount    
At 30 September
2023

671 967 2,897 1,851 - 6,386

At 30 September
2022

777 1,319 3,224 2,061 - 7,381

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

Theta Enhanced
Asset

Management
Limited

JCAP
Limited

Omega
Financial
Services
Limited

Concentric
Group

Limited

GE BVI
Limited

Total
Goodwill

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost       

At 1 October 2022 - 1,191 536 168 - 1,895
Acquired through
business
combinations

- - -
-

 
 

4,117
 

4,117

At 30 September
2023

- 1,191 536 168 4,117 6,012

 
10.  Property, plant, and equipment

Right of Equipment Computer Leasehold 

use assets & fixtures Hardware Improvements Total

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost      
At 1 October 2022 757 51 52  2 862

Additions 43 16 29 - 88

Disposals  -  - - - -

At 30 September 2023 800 67 81 2 950

Depreciation   
At 1 October 2022 86 14 25  - 125

Disposals  - - -  - -

Charge for the year 141 14 15  1 171

At 30 September 2023 227 28 40 1 296

Carrying Amount   

At 30 September 2023 573 39 41 1 654

  

At 30 September 2022 671 37 27 2 737
 

The right-to-use asset balance is  made up of four properties  across  the Group. The four properties  are:
 
-      6 Caledonia Place, St Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NG. The lease term ends on 30 Apri l  2030.
-      Ground Floor, 3 Mulcaster Street, St Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NJ. The lease term ends on 23 March 2026.
-      Third Floor, Conway House, St Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NT. The lease term ends on 31 October 2027.
-      Office 2002, Blvd Plaza Tower 1, Dubai , 2543, UAE. The lease term ends on 30 November 2023.

 
11. Subsidiary undertakings
 

Proportion
held by

Group

Proportion
held by

Subsidiary

Proportion
held by

Group

Proportion
held by

Subsidiary

Undertakings
Country of

incorporation Holding 30-Sep-23 30-Sep-23
30-Sep-

22 30-Sep-22

TEAM Midco Limited Jersey Ordinary 100% 0% 100% 0%

JCAP Limited Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

Theta Enhanced Asset
Management Limited

Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

TEAM (UK)
Management Services
Limited

U.K. Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

TEAM Nominees
Limited

Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

Omega Financial
Services  Limited

Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

Concentric Group
Limited

Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

Concentric Financial
Services  Limited

Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

Concentric Analytics
Limited Jersey Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%

Globaleye (BVI) Limited
British Virgin

Is lands Ordinary 100% 100% 0% 0%

Globaleye Insurance United Arab



Globaleye Insurance
Brokerage (L.L.C) (1)

United Arab
Emirates Ordinary 100% 100% 0% 0%

  
Globaleye Capital
Advisory LLC (2)

United Arab
Emirates Ordinary 100% 100% 0% 0%

Globaleye PTE LTD Singapore Ordinary 100% 100% 0% 0%

Globaleye (Labuan)
Limited Malays ia Ordinary 100% 100% 0% 0%

Globaleye Wealth
South Africa (PTY) Ltd
(3)

South Africa Ordinary 100% 100% 0% 0%

 
 
100% of the economic benefits  from the share capital  of Globaleye (BVI ) Limited and i ts  associated
subsidiaries  were acquired during the year in l ine with the strategy of the Group to become a leading
wealth manager in global  markets . The ownership of the shares  wi l l  be transferred to Team on receipt of
consent from the various  regulatory organisations  granting l icenses  to Globaleye.
(1)  As  is  required by local  legis laDon, a  majori ty of the shares  (51%) in Globaleye I nsurance Brokerage

LLC are held by local  individual , as  nominee for the shareholders  of Globaleye BVI.
(2)  For Globaleye Capital  Advisory LLC a local  individual  holds  10% of the share capital , again as  a

nominee for the shareholders  of Globaleye BVI.
(3)  For Globaleye Wealth South Africa (PTY) Ltd a  local  individual  hold 1% of the share capital  as  a

nominee for the shareholders  of Globaleye BVI.
 
S ince being acquired at 31st May 2023, Globaleye has  earned revenue of £1,332k and a loss  of £132k
for the four-month period ended 30 September 2023.

12.  Long-term deposit
O n 6 August 2020, a  group company entered into a  cl ient agreement with Pershing (Channel  I s lands)
Limited ("Pershing"), whereby Pershing is  to provide the company with the fol lowing services:

§     clearing and settlement services  in relation to permitted investments;
§    execuDon of transacDons to permiQed investments  and foreign exchange transacDons in connecDon

with executed trades; and
§      custody and nominee services .

 
The total  amount held by Pershing on a deposit account, on behalf of the Company during the year was
£100,000 (30 September 2022: £100,000). The cl ient agreement is  binding for a  period of 7 years  from
the 6 August 2020 and may be terminated by way of wriQen noDce of not less  than 180 days  fol lowing
the end of the 7 years ' period.
 
The Company has  opted to class i fy the deposit under the amorDsed cost method. The present value of
the deposit at the 30 September 2023 was £70,691 (30 September 2022: £63,208) based on a discount
rate of 11.25% (30 September 2022: 11.25%).

 
13.  Cash and cash equivalents

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Cash 1,244 1,747

Fixed deposits 694 -

 1,938 1,747
 
I ncluded in cash and cash equivalents  are fixed cash deposit accounts  of £694,000 which are required
for regulated insurance companies  in the United Arab Emirates  i f the company conDnues to remain
funcDonal . I f the l icence was to end, the amounts  would be returned on demand to the relevant
company.
 
I n Jersey, the group has  three regulated enDDes which fol low the Jersey F inancial  Services  Commiss ion
Code of P racDce for Fund Services  Bus iness  and I nvestment Bus iness . There is  a  requirement for these
companies  to maintain a  surplus  of adjusted net l iquid assets  over the expenditure requirement in a
ratio of 110%. The ANLA is  reviewed quarterly by management.
 

14.  Trade and other receivables
30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Due within one year    
Trade receivables 188 403

Accrued income 274 247

Prepayments  and other receivables 269 260

 731 910
 

In the view of the Directors , there is  no impairment of receivables  (30 September 2022: ni l )
 
 

15.  Trade and other payables
30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

Note £'000 £'000

Due within one year    
Lease l iabi l i ty 16 152 102

Payables 486 353

Social  securi ty and other taxes 69 79

Other Payables 1,111 185

Deferred cons ideration - cash settled 679 693

Deferred cons ideration - equity settled 3,077 955

Accruals 414 273

 5,988 2,640
 



 

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

Note £'000 £'000
 Due after one year  
 Lease l iabi l i ty 16 441 592

 Deferred cons ideration - cash settled 679 215

 Deferred cons ideration - equity settled 186 785

 Loan Notes 425 -

 1,731 1,592

 
The acquis iDon of Globaleye Group was funded by the obl igaDon to issue new TEAM P lc's  equity for an
iniDal  valuaDon of £2,545,000, and through the issuance of a  converDble loan note with a  headl ine
value of £2,445,370. The equity was  issued aVer the year end on 27 O ctober 2023, with 6,208,667
shares  issued. As  at 30 September 2023 the mid-market share price for TEAM ordinary shares  had fa l len
from 41 pence when the commercial  terms for the transacDon were agreed, to 36 pence, leading to a
reducDon in the value of the deferred payment of £310,000 to £2,235,000. This  reducDon is  included in
the fa ir value gains  on financial  instruments  in the Statement of Comprehensive I ncome. The converDble
loan note is  recorded at ni l  (see note 9), and the iniDal  balance of £1,126,000 is  a lso included in the
fair value gains  on financial  instruments .
 
The deferred payment for the acquis iDon of CGL was seQled aVer the period end on 27 O ctober 2023.
This  was  reduced from the maximum of £833,000, to £655,000, based on actual  revenues earned
against set targets . The difference of £178,000 is  included in the fa ir value gains  on financial
instruments  in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
 
The deferred payments  for the acquis iDon of O mega Financial  Service Limited did not fa l l  due during the
period, beyond £20,000 relaDng to work in progress  at the Dme of the acquis iDon. A balance of
£865,000 is  due within twelve months, and a further £865,000 is  due aVer 12 months, reduced by
£65,000 from the 30 September 2022 balance fol lowing an assessment of the expected revenues
generated in the unit. This  difference has  been taken to the fa ir value gains  on financial  instruments . As
part of the agreement to acquire the bus iness , up to £1.131 mi l l ion of cash wi l l  be held back from the
deferred payments  in l ight of the invesDgaDon by the JFS C of historic weaknesses  in the control
environment. This  wi l l  be released, net of any costs  or fines  incurred as  a  result of the invesDgaDon,
only when the JFSC closes  the investigation down.  
 
The Company issued £425,000 of unsecured loan notes  on 20th September 2023. The loan notes  are
repayable on 31 December 2024 and interest wi l l  rol l  up and be repaid on maturi ty. The interest rate
payable on the loan notes  is  12%. The Company can repay the loan notes  prior to the repayment date at
any Dme without penalty. The loan noteholders  cannot request early repayment. Fol lowing the period
end further notes  were issued, with the total  being £1,135,000 as  of the date of this  report.
 

Deferred Consideration  30 Sep 2023
£'000

30 Sep 2022
£'000

Opening balance 2,649 1,494
Additions  in year 3,672 2,649
Additional  cons ideration due from prior years - 40
Adjustments  in fa i r value during the year (1,680) -
Deferred cons ideration paid in year (20) (1,534)

Clos ing balance 4,621 2,649
 
16.  Lease liabilities

The amount of interest on the lease l iabi l iDes  recognised as  an expense during the year was  £40,136
(30 September 2022: £29,843). Fol lowing the acquis iDon of Globaleye during the year, the Group now
occupies  four properDes. 1) 6 Caledonia P lace, St Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NG. The lease repayments  are
£70,000 per annum. The lease term ends on 30 Apri l  2030. 2) Ground Floor, 3 Mulcaster Street, St
Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NJ. The lease repayments  are £30,000 per annum. The lease term ends on 23 March
2026. 3) Third F loor, Conway House, St Hel ier, Jersey, JE2 3NT. The lease repayments  are £40,680 per
annum. The lease terms ends  on 31 O ctober 2027.  4) O ffice 2002, Blvd P laza Tower 1, Dubai , 2543,
UAE. The lease term ends on 30 November 2023.
 

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Maturity analysis    
Not later than one year 152 102

Between one and five years 336 426

Greater than 5 years 105 166

 593 694
 

17.  Stated capital
 

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

No. No.

Allotted, called, and fully paid shares   
Ordinary shares* 21,976,145 21,976,145

 
*al l  shares  hold equal  voDng rights  of 1 vote each, the board can issue new shares  up to the l imit
speci fied in the prior year's  AGM.
 

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

£'000 £'000

Stated capital    
Opening balance 12,349 9,606

New Capital  subscribed - 2,743

 12,349 12,349



 12,349 12,349
 

18.  Related party transactions
Key management personnel  are the same as  the Directors . RemuneraDon of the Directors  i s  disclosed in
note 5 to the financial  s tatements .
 
O n 28 September 2023, the Company announced the issue of a  loan note for £425,000, of which Mr
Clubb and Mr Moore, the execuDve directors  of the Company, subscribed for £150,000 and £25,000
respectively.
 
There are no further related party transactions  to be disclosed during the year.
 

19.  Financial instruments
30 Sep 2023 30 Sept 2022

£'000 £'000

Categorisation of financial instruments  
Financial  assets  measured at amortised cost:
Trade receivables 188 403
Long-term deposit 71 63
Fixed deposits 694 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,244 1,747

2,197 2,213

  
Financial  l iabi l i ties  measured at amortised cost:
Trade payables (486) (353)
Other payables (1,111) (184)
Loan notes (425) -
Lease l iabi l i ty (593) (694)

(2,615) (1,231)
Financial  l iabi l i ties  measured at fa i r value:  
Deferred Consideration (4,621) (2,648)

(4,621) (2,648)
20.  Capital management

The Group's  objecDves  when managing capital  are to safeguard their abi l i ty to conDnue as  a  going
concern, so that they can conDnue to provide returns  for shareholders  and benefits  for other
stakeholders  and maintain an opDmal  capital  s tructure to reduce the cost of capital . I n order to
maintain or adjust the capital  s tructure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders , return capital  to shareholders , i ssue new shares  or sel l  assets  to reduce debt.
 
Certain acDviDes  of the Group are regulated by the JFS C which is  the regulator for financial  services
businesses  in Jersey and has  responsibi l i ty for pol icy, monitoring, and discipl ine for the financial
services  industry. The JFS C requires  the regulated enDDes' resources  to be adequate, that i s  sufficient in
terms of quanDty, qual i ty, and avai labi l i ty. There are a lso Group acDviDes  governed by regulators  in the
UAE, S ingapore, South Africa, and Labuan, and these also have capital  or other financial  requirements
on the regulated enti ty.

 
Credit risk management
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporDng period is  the carrying amount of each
class  of financial  assets  menDoned above. Revenue is  generated dai ly, and cash is  received in arrears ,
typical ly within 30 days  from the month or quarter end. The Group does  not bel ieve there is  s ignificant
credit risk. In addition, the financial  assets  are neither past due nor impaired.
 
Foreign currency risk management
The Group is  exposed to foreign exchange risk as  i t manages  cl ient assets  in Euro, US Dol lar, Swiss
Franc, UAE Dirham, S ingapore Dol lar, Malays ian Ringgit and South African Rand. Change in the
exchange rate wi l l  have an impact on the fees  earned when trans lated into Sterl ing.
 
W hi le the Globaleye Group companies  are impacted by foreign exchanged, the overal l  effect on the
TEAM plc numbers  is  not very s igni ficant as  shown by the sens itivi ty analys is  below:

  

Effect in £'000s  of a  % change in exchange rates + 1% -1%

Loss  for the year 1 1

Revenue 13 13

Cash and cash equivalents 10 10

Net assets 6 6

 
Market risk management
The Group is  mainly exposed to market risk in respect of variaDons in customers ' asset values  and
therefore the management fees  that the Group receives . There has  been no materia l  change to the
Group's  exposure to market risks  or the way i t manages  and measures  the risks .
 
Interest risk management
The Group has  no borrowings  exposed to variable interest rates  and is  therefore not exposed to interest
rate risk in that respect.
 
Liquidity risk management
The Group manages  l iquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserve and by conDnuously monitoring the
capital  requirements  of the Group. As  of 30 September 2023, the deficit of financial  assets  over
financial  l iabi l i ties  was  £5,039,000 (30 September 2022: defici t of £1,730,000).
 
Remaining maturi ties  of financial  l iabi l i ties :
 

Less than Between Greater than

one year 2-5 years 5 years Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000



Trade payables 486 - - 486
Other payables 4,867 865 - 5,732

Loan notes - 425 - 425

Lease l iabi l i ties 152 336 105 593

At 30 September 2023 5,505 1,626 105 7,236
 

Less than Between Greater than

one year 2-5 years 5 years Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Trade payables 353 - - 353

Other payables 1,833 1,000 - 2,833

Lease l iabi l i ties 102 426 166 694

At 30 September 2022 2,288 1,426 166 3,880
 

21.  Earnings per share
The Group has  calculated the weighted-average number of outstanding ordinary shares  for the period as
fol lows:
 

Weighted Average Number of Shares
2023

Date Number of
shares

Time weighting

Weighted
average

number of
shares

   
1 October 2022 - balance brought
forward

01-Oct-22 21,976,145 12/12 21,976,145

  21,976,145 12 months 21,976,145
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Weighted Average Number of Shares
2022 Date

Number of
shares Time weighting

Weighted
average

number of
shares

   
1 October 2021 - balance brought
forward

01-Oct-21 17,299,795 12/12 17,299,795

Deferred cons ideration shares  issued 31-Mar-22 259,683 7/12 151,482

May 2022 - subscription 01-May-22 4,416,667 5/12 1,840,278

  21,976,145 12 months 19,291,555
 

Loss per share 30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022

 £ £

Loss per share  
Loss  for the financial  period and total  comprehensive loss (445,524) (1,523,624)

Weighted average number of shares 21,976,145 19,291,555

 (0.020) (0.079)
       
Adjusted Loss per share Year to Period to  

30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022  

£'000 £'000  

Loss after tax (445) (1,524)  

   

Interest 35 23  

Tax 2 (64)  

Depreciation 171 81  

Amortisation of intangible assets 995 543  

EBITDA 758 (941)  

   

Acquis i tion related expenses* 222 129  

Share award expense 13 -  

Fair value adjustments (1,680) -  

Adjusted EBITDA (687) (812)  

Weighted average number of shares 21,976,145 19,291,555
 

 (0.031) (0.042)
 



 
*Acquis i tion related expenses  relate to third party advisor costs  incurred on the acquis i tion of    
  Globaleye, the terminated acquis i tion of Thornton, and various  work in progress  on other   
  potentia l  transactions  over the year.
 

22.  Ultimate controlling party
In the opinion of the Directors , there is  no s ingle ul timate control l ing party.
 

23.  Events after the statement of reporting date
Fol lowing the year end, a  further £710,000 of loan notes  were issued, bringing the total  value of loan
notes  issued to £1,135,000.

O n 1 November 2023, a  total  of 8,029,069 new ordinary shares  of no par value were issued at a  value of
36p each, in l ine with the equity cons ideraDons payable as  part of the acquis iDons of Concentric and
Globaleye.

O n 12 December 2023, the acquis iDon was announced of Neba Financial  SoluDons Limited ("Neba
Wealth"), a  Labuan, Malays ia  regulated network of financial  advisers  operaDng in As ian, South and
Central  American, African and Middle Eastern markets ; and Neba Financial  SoluDons P rivate Limited
("Neba Singapore") which promotes  structured funds  to I FAs  primari ly in Dubai  and Singapore. This
group of companies  wi l l  grouped together under "TEAM East" going forward. The total  iniDal
cons ideraDon was £1.181 mi l l ion, which was saDsfied by the issue of a  ni l  coupon loan note which is
convertible into 3,281,250 new ordinary shares  of ni l  par value in TEAM. Subsequent deferred payments
to the vendor of £1.0 mi l l ion for every £100 mi l l ion which is  invested into Theta Enhanced Asset
Management Limited funds  and models  aris ing from cl ients  of TEAM East wi l l  be seQled by the issue of
new TEAM plc shares  at the then prevai l ing market price, capped at a  maximum of 25 mi l l ion new
ordinary shares. Al l  new shares  to be issued to the vendor whether on convers ion of the loan note or in
saDsfacDon of any deferred payments  wi l l  have to be held for two years  from the date of i ssue before
they may be sold.

O n 27 December 2023 TEAM plc announced that i t had exchanged contracts  to acquire the enDre issued
share capital  of Homebuyer F inancial  Services  Limited ("H BFS"), a  Jersey based financial  planning
business , for total  cons ideraDon of £2.4 mi l l ion payable in cash. The acquis iDon is  subject to various
conditions, including fundrais ing by TEAM plc. As  at the date of s igning, the process  is  continuing.

O n 1 June 2023 TEAM plc announced the condiDonal  acquis iDon of Thornton Associates  Limited, an I s le
of Man based financial  planning bus iness , for cons ideraDon of up to £2.5 mi l l ion. O n 27 December
2023 TEAM plc announced that the Thornton management team had decided to remain independent and
therefore i t had terminated amicably the agreement with the Thornton shareholders .
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